Solutions to Study Questions, Problems, and Cases

Chapter 1

1.1
The annual report is published primarily for shareholders, while the 10-K report is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is used by regulators, analysts, and researchers.  The financial statements and much of the financial data are identical in the two documents; but the 10-K report contains more detail (such as schedules showing management remuneration and transactions, a description of material litigation and governmental actions, and elaborations of many financial statement accounts) than the annual report; and the annual report presents additional public relations type material such as colored pictures, charts, graphs, and promotional information about the company.

1.2
The analyst should use the financial statements: the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of stockholders' equity, and the statement of cash flows; the notes to the financial statements; supplementary information such as financial reporting by segments; the auditor's report; management's discussion and analysis of operating performance and financial condition; and the five-year summary of financial data.

Use the public relations "fluff," such as colored pictures and descriptive material with caution.

1.3
A qualified report is issued when the overall financial statements are fairly presented "except for" items which the auditor discloses; an adverse opinion is issued when the financial statements have departures from GAAP so numerous that the statements are not presented fairly.  A disclaimer of opinion is caused by a scope limitation resulting in the auditor being unable to evaluate and express an opinion on the fairness of the statements.  An unqualified opinion with explanatory language is caused by a consistency departure due to a change in accounting principle, uncertainty caused by future events such as contract disputes and lawsuits, events which the auditor believes may present business risk and going concern problems.

1.4
The proxy statement is a document required by the SEC to solicit shareholder votes, since many shareholders do not attend shareholder meetings.  The analyst can find important information in the proxy statement such as background information on the company's nominated directors, director and executive compensation, any proposed changes to those compensation plans and the audit and nonaudit fees paid to the auditing firm.

1.5
Employee relations with management, employee morale and efficiency, the reputation of the firm with its customers and in its operating environment, the quality and effectiveness of management, provisions for management succession, potential exposure to regulatory changes, "bad publicity" in the media.

1.6
Depreciation is a process of cost allocation, which requires estimation of useful life, salvage value, and a choice among depreciation methods affecting the timing of expense recognition.

1.7
Expense and revenue recognition can be different for purposes of calculating taxable income and earnings reported in the financial statements.  Thus, companies calculate taxable income taking advantage of every item that will reduce income; and the firm reports the highest possible income to shareholders.  Two sets of books (at least!) are kept: one for the IRS and one for the annual report. The financial analyst should be aware of the "Deferred Taxes" account, which reconciles differences between taxable and reported income.

1.8   

	(a)
	Annual Depreciation Expense  = 
	Asset cost

Dep. period


	
	Annual Depreciation Expense  = 
	$450,000
15
	=   $30,000


(b)   
Accum. Dep. at end of Yr. 1 = $30,000 

Accum. Dep. at end of Yr. 2 = Dep. Yr. 1 + Dep. Yr. 2 = $60,000

	(c)
	
	Year 1
	Year 2

	
	Historical Cost
	$450,000
	$450,000

	
	Accum. Dep.
	30,000
	60,000

	
	Fixed Assets (Net)
	$420,000
	$390,000


(d)
Dep. exp. for tax purposes




=  $45,000


Dep. expense reported in financial statements

=  $30,000


Amount by which dep. exp. for tax purposes



exceeds dep. exp. for reporting purposes      
  
=  $15,000

(e)
Amount by which taxable exp. exceeds reported exp.
=  $15,000

Tax rate                                    




=  0.3


Amount by which reported tax exp. exceeds actual



taxes paid






=  $ 4,500 

1.9  

(a)
1.  Switch to straight-line depreciation if not using.


2.  Lengthen depreciation period for depreciable assets.


(Items 1 and 2 would lower quality unless made to reflect economic reality.)


3.  Sell assets for a gain.


4.  Postpone loss recognition on inventory or investments.


5.  Reduce advertising and marketing expenditures.


6.  Reduce research and development expenditures.


7.  Reduce repair and maintenance expenditures.

(b)
To have a positive "real" impact on the firm's financial position, the company would have to increase revenue from a beneficial policy rather than a cosmetic change or to reduce costs in a manner that would not impair the long-term profitability of the firm. 


Examples:

          1.  Have a special end-of-year sale, offer discounts, offer rebates.

          2.  Invest in plant and equipment at end of year to get tax savings 

      
      from depreciation.

          3.  Get employees involved in cost-cutting measures.

          4.  Sell assets, if for a profit, that the firm had already planned to 

      
      sell at some point because of inefficiencies.

1.10

Memorandum
Date:

Current Date

To:

B.R. Neal, Director of Marketing

From:

Student's Name

Subject:
Contents of an Annual Report


The company's annual report presents financial information about the firm.  This information package is published primarily for shareholders and the general public.  The major components of an annual report are briefly described in this memo.


1)  An annual report contains four financial statements:  The balance sheet shows the financial condition (assets, liabilities, stockholders' equity) at end of year; the income or earnings statement presents the results of operations including revenues, expenses, net profit or loss, and net profit or loss per share for the year; the statement of stockholders' equity reconciles beginning and ending balances of accounts in the equity section of the balance sheet; and the statement of cash flows shows inflows and outflows of cash from operating, financing, and investing activities for the year.


2)  Notes to the financial statements provide additional detail about particular items in the financial statements. 3)  The auditor's report is prepared by an independent accounting firm and attests to the fairness of the information presented. 4)  The five-year summary shows key financial data including net sales, income/loss from continuing operations on a dollar and per share basis, assets, long-term debt, and dividends per common share.  5) Quarterly stock prices record how the company's stock shares have performed over the past two years.  6)  Management's Discussion and Analysis provides management's perspective on how the company is doing including favorable or unfavorable trends, and significant events or uncertainties.


The remaining material in the annual report is included primarily to provide background information about the company and its management, and to make the document attractive and interesting to read.


If staff members would like to learn more about any of the material in the company's annual report, the following book is highly recommended:  Understanding Financial Statements by Fraser and Ormiston (Prentice Hall, 2007).

1.11

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002


The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures made pursuant to the securities laws, and for other purposes.  The Act is comprised of eleven "titles," each with multiple sections.  This Act is in essence an extension of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and is, therefore, enforced by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  A summary of the eleven titles follows.

Title I - Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB)

Establishes the PCAOB to oversee and monitor the audit of public companies that are subject to the securities laws.  The Board shall be a private, nonprofit organization and will register and inspect public accounting firms that conduct audits, establish or adopt auditing rules and standards, conduct investigations, disciplinary proceedings and enforce compliance with this Act, and set and manage the budget of the Board.  The Board will be funded by the establishment of the "Annual Accounting Support Fee."  

Title II - Auditor Independence

Establishes rules to prevent conflicts of interest between the auditor and the firm being audited.  Audit firms are prohibited from providing nonaudit-related services while acting as a firm's auditor, such as bookkeeping, information systems design, valuation, actuarial, internal audit, or legal services.  In addition, audit partner rotation is required after an audit partner has performed five years of audit service for a firm.  

Title III - Corporate Responsibility

Establishes the rules for the composition of the audit committee including that members must meet the Act's definition of independent.  The principal officers, i.e., the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, must sign the quarterly and annual reports filed with the SEC to certify the accuracy of the reports.  Forfeiture of bonuses are required should the reports need to be restated due to a material noncompliance of the rules.  Insider trades by directors and officers during pension fund blackout periods are prohibited.

Title IV - Enhanced Financial Disclosures

Establishes the requirement for an internal control assessment each year and requires more extensive disclosures in the financial statements for correcting adjustments and off-balance-sheet transactions. Personal loans to executives are prohibited with the exception of certain types of credit. 

Title V - Analyst Conflicts of Interest

Establishes rules to protect analysts from conflicts of interests and encourage the objectivity and independence of securities analysts in order to foster greater public confidence in analysts' research.

Title VI - Commission Resources and Authority

Amends the amount of funding for the SEC, as well as amendments to the qualifications required of brokers and dealers.

Title VII - Studies and Reports

Requires that a variety of studies be conducted and the results reported for such items as the consolidation of public accounting firms, credit rating agencies, violators and violations of securities laws, enforcement actions and investment banking firms.

Title VIII - Corporate and Criminal Fraud Accountability

Establishes regulations and penalties for destruction of corporate audit records or records in Federal investigations and bankruptcy, protection for whistle-blowers, criminal penalties for defrauding shareholders of publicly traded companies, and amends the statute of limitations for securities fraud.

Title IX - White-Collar Crime Penalty Enhancements

Amends and increases the penalties for white-collar criminals.

Title X - Corporate Tax Returns

Requires the chief executive officer of the corporation to sign the federal income tax return.

Title XI - Corporate Fraud Accountability

Amends the federal sentencing guidelines, increases criminal penalties and gives the SEC temporary freeze authority and the authority to prohibit persons from serving as officers or directors.

1.12

(a)
Earnings management refers to the practice of using accounting choices and techniques in such a way that earnings reports reflect what management wants the user to see, instead of the true financial performance of the company.

(b) 
Managers are motivated to meet the earnings expectations of analysts on Wall Street. Companies not meeting these expectations have been punished with immediate stock price declines.  This in turn negatively impacts the firm's total market capitalization and the value of stock options granted employees.

(c)
The following five techniques used by companies create illusions according to Levitt:


1.  "Big Bath" restructuring charges – these charges are taken when a company reorganizes its businesses.  Often companies overestimate the amount of the charges which then results in income being recorded at a later date to correct the error.  These supposed one-time charges are usually received on Wall Street favorably since analysts tend to focus on future earnings.


Author's example:  Eastman Kodak Company has recorded restructuring charges every year since 1992 and claims these charges will end in 2007.


2.  Creative acquisition accounting – classifying part of the acquisition price when a merger occurs as "in-process" research and development.  This item is then written off in the year of acquisition because there is a chance that the research will not result in increased earnings.  If, in fact, earnings are increased later, the already written off expense will not negatively impact the earnings number.


Author's example:  In 2003, Johnson & Johnson made acquisitions for $3.1 billion and immediately wrote off just under $1 billion of "in-process" research and development.


3.  Cookie jar reserves – overestimating liabilities for such items as sales returns, loan losses or warranty costs.  This results in expenses being recorded in the year of the estimation, but allows a company to reverse these charges in a year when earnings are lower than desired.


Author's example:  The W.R. Grace and Co. used cookie jar reserves to stash away profits to be used in later years to mask declining earnings.  The former in-house audit chief blew the whistle on the firm in 1999, but the company had been abusing these reserves since the early 1990s.


4.  Materiality – the concept that insignificant items need not be reported.  Some companies abuse this concept by arguing that items are insignificant when in fact they are meaningful to users.  


Author's example:  Years ago many firms offered to pay for retirees' medical costs not covered by Medicare.  This was a relatively inexpensive benefit at the time.  Severe healthcare inflation quickly made this benefit extremely costly to firms; however, companies used the materiality concept to claim that this liability need not be reported.  When FASB forced companies to disclose what they had promised in medical benefits, many companies reported large losses.  In 1991, IBM reported an accumulated cost of over $2 billion for postretirement benefits.


5.  Revenue recognition – recording revenue before the transaction has actually occurred.


Sunbeam recorded sales of summer merchandise like outdoor grills in winter months, well before the product was shipped.  The company ultimately filed for bankruptcy.

(d)
Levitt proposes the following steps of action:


1.  The SEC must implement rules regarding more detailed disclosures of changes in accounting assumptions.

2.  The AICPA must clarify the rules to auditors of what is acceptable and what is unacceptable with regard to the illusory techniques described above.


3.  The SEC must publish better guidance on the concept of materiality.

4.  The SEC should consider guidance on the do's and don'ts of revenue recognition.

5.  Private sector standard setters need to address areas where current rules are inadequate.  FASB needs to promptly resolve current issues which will bring clarity to the definition of a liability.

6.  The SEC will formally target companies for review that appear to manage earnings and will aggressively act on abuses of the financial reporting process.

7.  The way audits are performed must be assessed.

8.  Audit committees must be empowered and function as the ultimate guardian of investors.

9.  Corporate management and Wall Street must embrace a cultural change.  Companies should be rewarded for honesty, not for being clever enough to deceive users through financial reporting.

(e)
Levitt believes that audit staff are insufficiently trained and supervised.  He also believes that audit committees in some firms are severely lacking in financial expertise. Remedies include the investigation and review of the auditing process and the development of recommendations intended to empower audit committees to perform their job correctly.  

1.13

(a)
Intel supplies the computing and communications industries with chips, boards, systems and software building blocks for computers, servers and networking and communication products.

(b)
The analyst could learn the following by reading the letter to stockholders:

· growth in 2004 was across a wide spectrum of market segments,

· over 75 % of Intel's sales were outside the Americas,

· the Intel brand was ranked fifth among the world's most valuable brands according to the 2004 BusinessWeek/Interbrand ranking,

· Intel has had 18 consecutive years of profitability, 

· after several missteps by the company that resulted in cancellation or delays of products, the firm appears to be on track again, and

· succession planning has been an important part of Intel's strategy.

(c)
Intel received an unqualified audit opinion.  The audit report states 

that the audit was conducted according to generally accepted auditing standards and the financial statements are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  Intel also received an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting.

(d)
The MD&A for Intel discusses the following items:

1.  The company expects the key source of liquidity to be internal cash, cash from operating activities and short-term investments and trade assets.  A relatively small amount of cash is generated externally from the sale of stock through employee plans.  To date, Intel has not used other external sources of cash, but the company has the potential to borrow through the sale of securities already registered with the SEC in the total amount of $4.4 billion ($3.0 billion in borrowings plus $1.4 billion in debt, equity, and other financing sources).  (pg. 35)

2.  No material deficiencies of liquidity currently exist.  (pg. 35)

3.  Intel plans to spend between $4.9 and $5.3 billion in 2005 for capital expenditures, primarily for investments in 300mm, 65-nanometer production equipment.  Since Intel has $16.8 billion of liquid assets it appears that capital expenditures will be covered with internally generated funds. (pg. 35)

4.  No anticipated changes in the mix and cost of financing resources are discussed.  (pg. 35)

5.  No unusual or infrequent transactions were found.

6.  It appears that Intel will continue to grow its revenues, but that expenses will grow proportionately with the exception of the effective tax rate.  An increase in tax expense could reduce overall profit.  (pg. 41)

7.  Sales increased 13.5% overall, caused by higher volume.  (pgs. 31-32)

(e)
Intel appears to have done a good job positioning themselves for the economic recovery.  The company is largely dependent on the worldwide computing industry and as a result, foreign currency exchange rates, political turmoil in foreign countries, or adverse economic conditions in those countries could negatively affect Intel.  Intel has, however, been diversifying its product lines and has created new opportunities for growth.

1.14  

(a)

[image: image25.png]Clear




(b)
Each student’s response will differ depending on the news sources used and the date on which the student completes the assignment.  Below is a sampling of news from articles in 2005:

Source:  The Wall Street Journal, April 7, 2005

"Kodak Reports 2004 Results; Restates 2003" 

Kodak finally released its 2004 results after many delays.  The company admitted that there were weaknesses in its internal controls and accounting errors had been found in taxation, pensions and restructuring transactions.  As a result net income numbers were lower than expected and the 2003 results had to be restated downward.  The revenue and cash flow numbers were unaffected.  

Fitch Ratings has downgraded Kodak's debt ratings due to the expected new debt that Kodak will take on due to acquisitions, declining film sales and the competitive market.  Kodak has projected a 30% decline in film sales as the company expands its digital market.

Source:  Financial Times, April 25, 2005

"Kodak struggles to adapt to digital world"

Kodak's first quarter results were disappointing and make it appear as though the company is struggling to transition into the digital field.  S&P downgraded Kodak's debt to a junk rating.  Kodak had $2.4 billion of debt in March.  The only good news is that for the first time Kodak overtook Sony with the most market share for digital camera sales in the U.S.  Kodak has 22% versus Sony's 19%.  

Source:  The Wall Street Journal, April 25, 2005

"Kodak Shifts to Loss as Revenue Slips"

First quarter results indicate that revenue at Kodak has slipped 3% and the firm reported a $142 million loss.  Kodak explained that it did not have enough low-end digital cameras in stock, silver and oil-related costs rose, and its health-care business lost sales due to defective screens on scanners.

Kodak's strategy continues to be to reap profits from film while funding acquisitions and development of digital products.  The company expects $1.7 billion of restructuring over three years as it eliminates 15,000 jobs and reduces its facilities by one-third.

Source:  Business Week, May 23, 2005

"A Digital Warrior for Kodak"

Kodak's CEO Daniel Carp suddenly resigned and Antonio Perez will take over June 1, 2005, as CEO.  By early May the stock price of Kodak had slumped 30% from its 52-week high.  The market has reacted favorably to the appointment of Perez to the CEO position. He has an impressive background including building Hewlett-Packard's printer business into a $10 billion market.  He spent 25 years at Hewlett-Packard, but his management style clashed with Carly Fiorina and he left in 2003 to become Kodak's president.  

(c)
 The Management's Letter is upbeat and focuses only on the positives that the company has to offer.  The company is going through a major restructuring, disposing of some segments and focusing on the digital market.  While management speaks favorably of all segments they do not really discuss how competitive they are with Sony, Canon, Minolta and others.  It appears that Kodak may have some unique niches.  The retail photo kiosks are well known by consumers and Kodak also specializes in digital imaging for the healthcare field, a rapidly expanding area.  The Outlook section of the letter gives a bulleted list of priorities which is nice, but not informative.  Management does not indicate how they will drive digital revenue growth, meet earnings goals, cut costs, and maintain excellence.  While management refers in favorable terms to their employees, there must be many disgruntled former employees that have been downsized out of the company, and one has to wonder about the current morale of the employees left behind.  Outside news on the firm in the first quarter of 2005 is contrary to all that management said in their letter to shareholders.  


Kodak received an unqualified opinion with explanatory language from its auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in 2004.  The explanatory note reveals that the firm had to restate 2003 results due to income tax, pension and post- retirement benefit plan matters.  The auditor indicates in its report that Kodak did not maintain effective internal controls over its tax, pension, and postretirement  areas.  In the Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, the weaknesses are described in detail and then management explains what they plan to do to correct these problems.  It is predicted that effective controls will be in place by the third quarter of 2005.  Since maintaining good internal control has always been a requirement of management, and a requirement for auditors to assess, one has to consider the implications suggested now that these items are being revealed as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  For example, how is it that a company as large as Kodak that has been in business 125 years, does not have employees with tax accounting expertise?  


Item 1 in the Eastman Kodak Form 10-K for 2004 is more informative than the letter to shareholders, but still lacking in some information that would be helpful in assessing the company.  Unlike the letter to shareholders, one can learn about the restatement of the 2003 numbers, key raw materials needed (silver, for example), the seasonality of certain segments within Kodak, and the fact that the firm is planning to reduce headcount of employees by 25% from 2004 to 2006.  But nowhere in the extensive discussion of marketing and competition are the names of key competitors revealed or how Kodak stacks up against its competition.


Item 3 of the Form 10-K informs the reader of the legal proceedings in which Kodak is a party.  The most significant legal proceedings are the lawsuits regarding patent infringements filed by Kodak against Sony, as well as those filed by Sony against Kodak.  A settlement was reached in another patent infringement lawsuit in which Sun Microsystems agreed to pay Kodak $92 million.  Finally, Kodak has settled and agreed to pay $140,000 for environmental violations.


Item 4 of the Form 10-K lists the biographies of the executive officers.  Nine of the executives have built their careers at Kodak.  It also appears that those executives hired from the outside have come mainly from Hewlett-Packard and General Electric.  Nothing unusual stands out from reading the biographies. 

CASE 1.1

THE WALT DISNEY COMPANY

1.
The range of numbers that could be considered as total compensation would probably range from a minimum of the amounts listed in the "Summary Compensation Table" to a maximum that would include all the benefits outlined in the notes attached to the table.  In many firms employees are given a summary sheet outlining their compensation and it includes not just salary and bonus, but also the benefits that the firm chooses to pay for that employee.  Using the above rationale a range from minimum to maximum is calculated below for Michael Eisner:

Year




2004

2003

2002

2001



Compensation from table
    $8,312,373    $7,318,431   $6,092,894   $1,004,020

Security systems


 18,663      
  28,483
   16,422

Security services

         716,335
808,965
 480,951

New York apartment
         120,000
120,000
 120,000




Total compensation
    $9,167,371    $8,275,879   $6,709,907   $1,004,020


Note:  It appears that the benefits for 2001 may not have been revealed in the notes as they were in the later proxy statements.

2.
The hourly salary range from minimum to maximum based on the answer to part 1 would be as follows:


2004

$2,078.09 - $2,291.84


2003

$1,829.61 - $2,068.97


2002

$1,523.22 - $1,677.48


2001

$   251.00

3.
The pay increases based on the minimum and maximum numbers would be:





Minimum


Maximum

2003 - 2004

   13.6%


    10.8%

2002 - 2003

   20.1%


    23.3%

2001 - 2002

 506.9%

4.
The high pay rates that CEOs receive can be attributed to the long hours that must be worked, the extensive knowledge and expertise the individual must have, a lack of job security, and the fact that there is a limited supply of qualified people for this position.  In addition, since 2002 and the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the CEO is taking on more liability due to having to certify the accuracy of the financial statements.

5.
A shareholder would have earned the following returns:

2003 - 2004  
12.3%
($91-81)/$81

2002 - 2003

35.0%
($81-60)/$60

2001 - 2002
         (17.8%)
($60-73)/$73

The average return over the three-year period would have been 24.7%.  

($91-73)/$73

6.
Since 2002, the percentage pay increase that Michael Eisner received is in line with the rate of return that shareholders received.  Given the complexities of the job, the long hours required, the lack of job security and the necessary knowledge and expertise needed for the job, the CEO should be paid handsomely.  On the other hand, the 506.9% pay increase seems out of line especially since shareholders received a negative return from 2001 to 2002.  Despite the arguments for the high pay, there are only 24 hours in a day and one must question if anyone is worth thousands of dollars per hour.  Considering the differential between the lowest paid workers (probably minimum wage) and the CEO, the high rate that Michael Eisner receives seems to be based on greed, not value.  

7.
Students will most likely have varying opinions.

CASE 1.2

ULTIMATE ELECTRONICS, INC.

1.
The Management Discussion and Analysis section provides important information that cannot be found anywhere else in the annual report.  The section covers trends, events, and uncertainties in the areas of liquidity, capital resources, and operations.  Information should include a discussion of:

a.
internal and external sources of liquidity;

b.
any material deficiencies in liquidity and how they will be remedied;

c.
commitments for capital expenditures and expected sources of funding;

d.
anticipated changes in the mix and cost of financing resources;

e.
unusual or infrequent transactions which affect income from continuing operations;

f.
events which cause material changes in the relationship between costs and revenues; and

g.
a breakdown of sales increases into price and volume components.

2.
The MD&A includes the following discussion of the seven items outlined in (1) above:

a.
Management states that historically the firm has used both internal and external sources to fund the company; however, in 2004, the company used, rather than generated cash from operations and appears to be relying on borrowings, an external source of funding, to support operations.

b.
Management believes that cash from operations and the revolving line of credit will be sufficient to fund operations through 2005.  The future plans of the company are to spend less on expansion and focus on current problems with the hope of generating cash from operations.  If the company is successful, then there is no deficiency, but if they are unsuccessful then it appears they have no plan to remedy the possible deficiency.

c.
Ultimate Electronics, Inc., anticipates spending $12 million to resolve issues with its management information system, in-store projects tied to merchandising initiatives, the relocation of a store, remodels of existing stores and the opening of one new store in 2005.  Funding sources will be cash from operations or the line of credit.

d.
No changes to the current mix and cost of financing resources were discussed; however, given the firm's poor operating results, it appears likely that the firm may need to take on more debt.

e.
There is no indication of unusual or infrequent transactions occurring in the future.

f.
Whether there are changes in the relationship between costs and revenues is highly dependent on how effective management is in implementing its plan for 2005.  If the firm can reduce costs and focus on current stores, rather than spending on expansion, it is possible that revenues could grow faster than overall costs.  On the other hand, the company needs a new approach to advertising to increase sales and this could increase costs, while not increasing revenues and profits.  Based on the information given it is difficult to know for sure what might really happen.

g.
The sales increase of 1% for the year ended January 31, 2004, was due to higher volume due to the opening of new stores.  The sales increase was negatively impacted by a decrease in comparable store sales of 9% for the year.

3. Ultimate Electronics, Inc., explained thoroughly the problems and challenges the company is facing.  Management offered their plan to remedy this situation and while the report was optimistic, it was also honest. 

4. Answers will vary based on individual students' reactions to the challenges the firm faces and whether they think management can overcome these obstacles.  

Note:  Ultimate Electronics, Inc., filed for bankruptcy in 2005.  A private investor bought the company and paid off the debt.  Some of the poor-performing stores were closed, while other locations remained intact.  

Chapter 2

2.1
The estimation of the allowance for doubtful accounts affects both the valuation of accounts receivable on the balance sheet and the amount of bad debt expense recognized on the income statement.  Changes in the Allowance account relative to sales level and the amount of accounts receivable outstanding may be an indication that earnings quality is or is not being improved.  For example, if a company expands sales by lowering its credit standards, then the Allowance account should also be expanded if a quality earnings figure is to be reflected.

2.2
Inventories are a significant proportion of the asset structure for most firms (service firms are an exception).  The inventory accounting method used will impact the valuation of inventories on the balance sheet and also the cost of goods sold expense on the income statement.  If the valuation method is not realistic, the ending inventory and earnings figure will be distorted.

2.3
Although LIFO generates a larger cost of goods sold expense and lower earnings in a period of inflation, the tax benefits may outweigh the costs of reporting a lower earnings figure.  Use of LIFO reduces a firm's taxable income and, thus, the firm saves in terms of actual cash, not just paper figures.

2.4
The straight-line method of depreciation spreads the expense evenly by periods, while the accelerated methods yield higher depreciation expense in the early years of an asset's life and lower expense in the later years.  Use of an accelerated method for tax reporting tends to defer tax liabilities for firms which invest heavily in depreciable assets.  For reporting purposes, straight-line depreciation will yield a higher earnings figure in the early years and will also distribute expense recognition smoothly.

2.5
The Retained Earnings account is the measurement of all undistributed earnings.  The account does not represent cash in any way.  A company can have positive retained earnings and have a zero cash balance.

	2.6
	A
	B
	C

	Inventory

Assets
	28%
	65%
	43%

	
	
	
	

	Net Fixed Assets

Total Assets
	40%
	15%
	11%


A is a manufacturer, B is a retailer, and C is a wholesaler.

2.7  (a)  Information to be used for all methods of inventory valuation:







Units
x  Cost  = Total


Beginning inventory
        10,000
x  $3.00 = $ 30,000


January 10 purchase

4,000 x    3.50 =    14,000


April 25 purchase

        10,000 x    4.00 =    40,000


July 10 purchase


6,000 x    4.50 =    27,000


October 15 purchase

8,000 x    5.00 =    40,000


Total


        38,000 

      $151,000 

Sales for the year = 8,000 + 11,000 + 3,000 + 9,000 = 31,000 units

Ending inventory = 38,000 - 31,000 = 7,000 units

FIFO 

COGS: 




EI:


10,000@$3.00 = $ 30,000

7,000@$5.00 = $35,000

  4,000@$3.50 = $ 14,000


10,000@$4.00 = $ 40,000
Check answer:  COGS
$116,000


  6,000@$4.50 = $ 27,000


    +EI

    35,000

  1,000@$5.00 = $   5,000
Total goods available
$151,000

31,000 units        $116,000   

LIFO (periodic)

COGS:




EI:


  8,000@$5.00 = $ 40,000

7,000@$3.00 = $21,000

  6,000@$4.50 = $ 27,000


10,000@$4.00 = $ 40,000
Check answer:  COGS
$130,000


  4,000@$3.50 = $ 14,000


   +EI

    21,000

  3,000@$3.00 = $   9,000
Total goods available
$151,000 

31,000 units
       $130,000
LIFO (perpetual)

COGS:




EI:

Jan. 1 - Mar.31  



Mar. 31 

  4,000@$3.50 = $14,000
 

  4,000@$3.00 = $12,000

6,000@$3.00 = $18,000

Apr. 1 - Jun. 30



Jun. 30


10,000@$4.00 = $40,000



  1,000@$3.00 = $  3,000

5,000@$3.00 = $15,000

Jul. 1 - Sept. 30



Sept. 30


3,000@$4.50 = $13,500


5,000@$3.00 = $15,000








3,000@$4.50 = $13,500

Oct. 1 - Dec. 31



Dec. 31


8,000@$5.00 = $40,000


5,000@$3.00 = $15,000


1,000@$4.50 = $  4,500


2,000@$4.50 = $  9,000

Total COGS = $127,000


EI  =  $24,000

Check answer:  COGS + EI = $127,000 + $24,000 = $151,000

Average Cost per unit:
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COGS = $3.97 x 31,000 units = $123,070

EI 
 = $151,000 - $123,070 = $  27,930

(b)
LIFO produces an understated inventory valuation on the balance sheet but a currently valued cost of goods sold on the income statement, matching current costs with current revenues; FIFO results in a currently valued balance sheet inventory but an understated cost of goods sold expense and thus an overstatement of net income; average cost falls in between LIFO and FIFO and is a good choice for companies with volatile inventories.

2.8

$150,000 x 0.14 = $21,000 annual interest

	$21,000

12
	= $1,750 monthly interest


$1,750 x 5 months = $8,750 accrued interest for 5 months (July 31 to 

December 31)

2.9

	
	Tax Purposes
	Reporting Purposes

	Revenue
	$800,000
	$800,000

	Expenses
	550,000
	480,000

	Earnings before Taxes
	$250,000
	$320,000

	Tax Expense (34%)
	85,000
	108,800

	Net Income
	$165,000
	$211,200


	Reported Tax Expense
	$108,800

	Actual Taxes Paid
	(85,000)

	Deferred Tax Liability
	$23,800


2.10
Treasury stock is shown as a reduction of shareholders' equity.  (Most companies use the cost method rather than the par value method to account for treasury stock, so the cost of the treasury stock is deducted.) The number of shares acquired for treasury is deducted from the number of shares outstanding used to compute earnings per share; thus a firm can increase earnings per share by purchasing treasury stock.

2.11

	
	Change from

2003 to 2004
	Change from

2002 to 2003

	Revenues
	27.9%
	17.3%

	Total Receivables
	16.0%
	17.3%

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(12.8%)
	(21.7%)


Allowance account as a percentage of receivables:

	
	Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net receivables + Allowance
	Percentage of

Receivables



	2004
	$41
$1,696 + $41
	2.36%

	2003
	$47
$1,451 + $47
	3.14%

	2002
	$60

$1,217+ $60
	4.70%


As revenues have increased at Texas Instruments, receivables have also increased, but not as much as revenues.  This is an expected pattern; however, it is unusual for the allowance account to decrease.  The Allowance account as a percentage of total receivables indicates that the management at Texas Instruments believes that a higher percentage of receivables will be collected compared to prior years as evidenced by the drop in the allowance/receivables ratio from 4.70% to 2.36%.  The analyst would want to explore the reason for this change.  It is possible Texas Instruments had recorded higher bad debts during the economic downturn in years prior to 2002, but customers did not default as expected.  The firm could then be correcting the prior overestimation.  If no valid explanation can be found, it is possible that the account had been underestimated in prior years in order to later increase earnings.

2.12

(a)
FIFO is probably used for the rest of Kennametal's inventories.  Companies using LIFO must disclose the value of those inventories as if FIFO had been used, which Kennametal has done in this case.

(b)
Finished goods refers to those inventories that are complete and ready for sale.  Work in process and powder blends are inventories currently in the manufacturing process, but not yet complete.  Raw materials and supplies have not been put in the manufacturing process.  The amount closest to current cost would be the FIFO inventory value.  Under FIFO, the first goods purchased are assumed sold, so the last goods purchased would be included in the inventory valuation and would have been purchased at amounts closest to current costs.  The LIFO valuation reduction is a result of the impact of inflation on inventory values.  Since the first goods purchased using LIFO remain in inventory, LIFO inventories would be valued at a lower amount than FIFO inventories during an inflationary period.  Kennametal's inventories are lower in 2004, ($388,077) than they would have been if reported using FIFO ($412,448).  

2.13

(a)
Target would record the assets leased under property, plant and equipment, net of any depreciation or amortization recorded to date.  The capital lease obligation would be recorded in current and noncurrent liabilities.  The current portion would be the $3 million due in the upcoming year and the long-term portion could be $88 million.  Interest, depreciation and amortization expense would be recorded on the income statement.

(b)
Rent expense of $240 million in 2004, and $150 million in 2003 and 2002, would be included within operating expenses on Target's income statement.  A reference to "Commitments" would be included in the liability section of Target's balance sheet.

(c)
Operating leases are a form of off-balance sheet financing.  The amounts owed for operating leases should be looked at as future debt when analyzing a firm's financial statements.  In this case, Target has overall operating lease obligations of $3,049 million.  If the analyst adds this amount to all other debt, Target has future liabilities of $22,313 million or 69% of total assets.  Without consideration of the operating leases it appears that Target's ratio of debt to assets is only 60%.

2.14

Chester Co.

Balance Sheet at December 31, 20XX

	Assets
	

	Current Assets
	

	
	Cash
	$1,500

	
	Accounts receivable
	6,200

	
	Inventory
	12,400

	
	Prepaid expenses
	700

	Total Current Assets
	$20,800

	Property, plant and equipment
	34,000
	

	Less accumulated depreciation
	(10,500)
	

	Property, plant and equipment, net
	$23,500

	Land held for sale
	9,200

	Total Assets
	$53,500

	
	
	

	Liabilities and stockholders' equity
	

	Current liabilities
	

	
	Accounts payable
	$4,300

	
	Notes payable
	8,700

	
	Accrued interest payable
	1,400

	
	Current portion of long-term debt
	1,700

	Total current liabilities
	$16,100

	Deferred taxes payable
	1,600

	Bonds payable
	14,500

	Total liabilities
	$32,200

	Stockholders' equity
	

	
	Common stock
	2,500

	
	Additional paid-in capital
	7,000

	
	Retained earnings
	11,800

	Total stockholders' equity
	21,300

	Total liabilities and stockholders' equity
	$53,500


2.15
There is no solution presented here for this exercise, but the authors would welcome students' responses.  Some possibilities might include Exhibits 2.3 and 2.4 presented in bar or pie chart format; a diagram showing the cost flow assumptions used to value inventory; a pie chart displaying types of depreciation used for financial reporting; a drawing illustrating a distraught reader trying to understand accounting for deferred federal income taxes.

2.16
There is no solution presented here since a variety of companies may be used for this problem.  Assigning specific companies will allow instructors to review answers in the class as a whole.  

2.17
There is no solution presented here since a variety of industries may be used for this problem.  Assigning specific industries will allow instructors to review answers in the class as a whole.  

2.18

	(a)
	INTEL
	

	
	Common Size Balance Sheet
	


	
	2004
	2003

	Assets:
	
	

	Current Assets
	
	

	
	Cash and equivalents
	17
	%
	17
	%

	
	Short-term investments
	12
	
	12
	

	
	Trading assets
	7
	
	6
	

	
	A/R
	6
	
	6
	

	
	Inventories

	5
	
	5
	

	
	Deferred tax assets
	2
	
	                   2
	

	
	Other current assets
	1
	
	                   1
	

	Total current assets
	50
	%
	49
	%

	Property, plant and equipment, net
	33
	%
	35
	%

	Marketable strategic equity securities
	1
	
	1
	

	Other long-term investments
	5
	
	4
	

	Goodwill, net
	8
	
	8
	

	Other assets
	3
	
	3
	

	Total Assets
	100
	%
	100
	%


	
	2004
	2003

	Liabilities:
	
	

	Current liabilities
	
	

	
	Short-term debt
	1
	%
	--
	%

	
	A/P
	4
	
	4
	

	
	Accrued compensation and benefits
	4
	
	3
	

	
	Accrued advertising
	2
	
	2
	

	
	Deferred income on shipments 

	1
	
	1
	

	
	Other accrued liabilities
	3
	
	3
	

	
	Income taxes payable
	2
	
	2
	

	Total current liabilities
	17
	%
	15
	%

	Long-term debt
	1
	
	2
	

	Deferred tax liabilities
	2
	
	3
	

	Total liabilities
	20
	%
	20
	%

	Stockholders' equity
	
	
	
	

	
	Common stock
	13
	
	14
	

	
	Acquisition-related unearned stock compensation
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Accumulated. other comprehensive income
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Retained earnings
	67
	
	66
	

	Total stockholders' equity
	80
	%
	80
	%

	Total liabilities & stockholders' equity
	100
	%
	100
	%


(b)
The current assets of Intel include cash, short-term investments, trading assets, accounts receivable, inventories, deferred tax assets and other current assets.  Long-term assets are composed of property, plant and equipment, marketable strategic equity securities, long-term investments, goodwill, and an other assets account.  The most significant assets to the company are cash and short-term investments, property, plant and equipment and goodwill.

Trading assets and available-for-sale investments are reported at fair value.  Non-marketable equity securities are accounted for at historical cost, or, if Intel has significant influence over the investee the equity method is used.  Inventories are valued using current average or FIFO.  Straight-line depreciation is used for depreciating property, plant and equipment for financial reporting purposes.

Other items learned from the notes about asset accounts include information about Intel's many investments, derivative financial instruments, a break-down of the inventory account into raw materials, work in process and finished goods, detail of the property, plant and equipment account, the estimated useful lives of plant and equipment, goodwill, and other intangible assets.

The asset structure is stable.  The only percentage changes in assets are the 2% decline in net property, plant and equipment due to accumulated depreciation and a 1% increase in trading assets and long-term investments.  Liabilities and equity, overall have remained at 20% and 80%, respectively.

(c)
Allowance account as a percentage of accounts receivable:

	
	Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net Receivables + Allowance
	Percentage of

Receivables



	2004
	$43
$2,999 + $43


	1.41%

	2003
	$55
$2,960 + $55
	1.82%


	
	Change from

2003 to 2004

	Sales
	13.5%

	Total Accounts Receivable
	 0.9%

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(21.8%)


As sales have increased accounts receivable has remained almost the same and the allowance for doubtful accounts has decreased.  This is an abnormal pattern.  One would expect accounts receivable to increase more, but the fact that it has not is good since this means Intel has collected more receivables in cash.  It would be normal for the Allowance account to remain stable, but an assumption has been made at Intel that more receivables will be collected compared to prior years.  Given the upturn in the economy in 2004, this may be a reasonable assumption.  Looking at the valuation and qualifying accounts schedule in Intel's Form 10-K (page 85) it appears that Intel overestimated the Allowance account by quite a bit prior to 2002.  Actual write-offs range between $16 and $21 million each year, yet the Allowance account was $68 million in 2002.  The effect now of recording less bad debt expense causes net income to be higher than it would be otherwise.  It is possible that Intel purposely overestimated the bad debt expense during the economic downturn when the markets were already expecting poor profit numbers.  

It is noteworthy that Intel's three largest customers account for 45% of accounts receivable.  Should one of these customers default this would negatively impact Intel. In addition, should one of these customers choose to take its business elsewhere, that would be highly detrimental to Intel's sales and ultimate profits.  Intel believes that its three largest customers are low risk with regard to collection on their accounts based on historical experience.  Since Dell and Hewlett-Packard are Intel's two largest customers (page 11 of Form 10-K), this is probably a good assumption.

(d)
Intel has the typical liabilities found on most companies' balance sheets:  short-term debt, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, deferred income, income taxes payable, long-term debt and deferred tax liabilities.  No one liability account is significant.  In 2003 and 2004, only 20% of the capital structure is debt, while 80% is equity.  There have been no significant changes to the debt and equity structure.

(e)
Intel has commitments for operating leases and is committed to pay $563 million in the future (2005 and thereafter).  The company has also committed to construct or purchase property, plant and equipment of approximately $2.8 billion.  Other commitments including licenses and noncontingent funding obligations total $687 million.

Contingencies include tax matters and legal proceedings.  Intel is currently trying to resolve a dispute with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).  It is possible that net income would be negatively impacted should the IRS prevail in the dispute.  For tax years 1999 and 2000 Intel could potentially owe $600 million, plus interest.

Intel has been involved for years in patent infringement lawsuits with Intergraph Corporation.  Intel has settled these cases and recorded a $162 million charge to cost of sales in 2004.  Another $63 million representing the value of intellectual property will amortized over the assets' remaining lives.

Unresolved lawsuits to date include a suit brought by MicroUnity, Inc., for patent infringement and a false advertising claim in Illinois amongst others.  The outcomes of these lawsuits could negatively impact Intel's net income in future years.  Intel has also been involved in an environmental clean-up, but this has been largely resolved and no material adverse impact is expected.


(f)
Deferred taxes are included under current assets and noncurrent liabilities.  Depreciation is the most significant component of deferred taxes.

(g)
Intel has the following equity accounts:  Preferred stock, Common stock, Acquisition-related unearned stock compensation, Accumulated other comprehensive income and Retained earnings.

2.19
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Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)



	Annual Consolidated Balance Sheet

	Amounts Rounded to : Millions

	
	
	Results as of  December 31

	
	
	2004
	2003

	ASSETS
	
	

	    Current Assets:
	
	

	
	Cash and cash equivalents
	 $              1,255 
	 $              1,250 

	
	Short-term investments
	
	

	
	  Total cash and short-term investments
	                  1,255 
	                  1,250 

	
	Accounts receivable, net
	                  2,544 
	                  2,327 

	
	Inventories, net
	                  1,158 
	                  1,078 

	 
	Current deferred taxes
	                     556 
	                     596 

	
	Other current assets
	                     135 
	                     201 

	
	    Total current assets
	                  5,648 
	                  5,452 

	 
	Property, plant, and equipment
	               12,694 
	               13,176 

	 
	Less:  Accumulated depreciation
	                  8,182 
	                  8,125 

	
	  Net property, plant, and equipment
	                  4,512 
	                  5,051 

	
	Long-term investments
	                     513 
	                     446 

	
	Goodwill, net
	                  1,446 
	                  1,349 

	
	Other intangibles, net
	                     478 
	                     294 

	
	Other deferred taxes
	                     521 
	                     439 

	
	Other assets
	                  1,619 
	                  1,815 

	
	      Total assets
	 $            14,737 
	 $            14,846 

	LIABILITIES
	
	

	    Current Liabilities:
	
	

	
	Accounts payable
	 $                  868 
	 $                  832 

	
	Short-term debt
	                       69 
	                     489 

	
	Current portion of long-term debt
	                     400 
	                     457 

	
	Accrued liabilities
	                  3,028 
	                  2,798 

	
	Income taxes payable
	                     625 
	                     643 

	
	Other current liabilities
	
	                       36 

	
	  Total current liabilities
	                  4,990 
	                  5,255 

	
	Long-term debt
	                  1,852 
	                  2,302 

	
	Deferred income taxes payable
	                       67 
	                       89 

	
	Other deferred liabilities
	
	

	
	Other liabilities
	                  4,017 
	                  3,955 

	
	    Total liabilities
	               10,926 
	               11,601 

	STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
	
	

	
	Preferred stock
	
	

	
	Common stock, par value plus additional paid-in capital
	                  1,828 
	                  1,828 

	
	Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
	                  7,922 
	                  7,515 

	
	Treasury stock
	                (5,844)
	                (5,852)

	
	Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
	                      (90)
	                   (238)

	
	Other stockholders' equity
	                        (5)
	                        (8)

	
	    Total stockholders' equity
	                  3,811 
	                  3,245 

	
	      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity
	 $            14,737 
	 $            14,846 

	Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

	Annual Common Size Balance Sheet

	Summary percentages in italics will not foot due to rounding

	
	
	Results as of  December 31

	
	
	2004
	2003

	ASSETS
	
	

	    Current Assets:
	
	

	
	Cash and cash equivalents
	8.5%
	8.4%

	
	Short-term investments
	0.0%
	0.0%

	
	  Total cash and short-term investments
	8.5%
	8.4%

	
	Accounts receivable, net
	17.3%
	15.7%

	
	Inventories, net
	7.9%
	7.3%

	 
	Current deferred taxes
	3.8%
	4.0%

	
	Other current assets
	0.9%
	1.4%

	
	    Total current assets
	38.3%
	36.7%

	 
	Property, plant, and equipment
	86.1%
	88.8%

	 
	Less:  Accumulated depreciation
	55.5%
	54.7%

	
	  Net property, plant, and equipment
	30.6%
	34.0%

	
	Long-term investments
	3.5%
	3.0%

	
	Goodwill, net
	9.8%
	9.1%

	
	Other intangibles, net
	3.2%
	2.0%

	
	Other deferred taxes
	3.5%
	3.0%

	
	Other assets
	11.0%
	12.2%

	
	      Total assets
	100.0%
	100.0%

	LIABILITIES
	
	

	    Current Liabilities:
	
	

	
	Accounts payable
	5.9%
	5.6%

	
	Short-term debt
	0.5%
	3.3%

	
	Current portion of long-term debt
	2.7%
	3.1%

	
	Accrued liabilities
	20.5%
	18.8%

	
	Income taxes payable
	4.2%
	4.3%

	
	Other current liabilities
	0.0%
	0.2%

	
	  Total current liabilities
	33.9%
	35.4%

	
	Long-term debt
	12.6%
	15.5%

	
	Deferred income taxes payable
	0.5%
	0.6%

	
	Other deferred liabilities
	0.0%
	0.0%

	
	Other liabilities
	27.3%
	26.6%

	
	    Total liabilities
	74.1%
	78.1%

	STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
	
	

	
	Preferred stock
	0.0%
	0.0%

	
	Common stock, par value plus additional paid-in capital
	12.4%
	12.3%

	
	Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
	53.8%
	50.6%

	
	Treasury stock
	-39.7%
	-39.4%

	
	Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
	-0.6%
	-1.6%

	
	Other stockholders' equity
	0.0%
	-0.1%

	
	    Total stockholders' equity
	25.9%
	21.9%

	
	      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity
	100.0%
	100.0%


(b)
Eastman Kodak's balance sheet is stable from 2003 to 2004, with only minor changes in the accounts.  The most significant current asset accounts are Accounts Receivable and Cash.  The Receivables account has increased 1.6%.  Property, Plant and Equipment is the largest asset Kodak has and this account is decreasing in both dollars and percentage.  Kodak also has a significant amount of goodwill and 11% of assets are classified as "other" which includes mainly prepaid pension costs.  


Overall current liabilities have decreased as a result of reductions in short-term debt and current portions of long-term debt.  Accrued liabilities are the most significant current liability and have increased from 2003 to 2004.  Total liabilities have decreased not only because of the above-mentioned changes, but also because long-term debt has also decreased.


Stockholders' equity has also increased mainly because of the increase in retained earnings.  Kodak has been able to reduce its overall debt so that it now makes up 74.1% of total assets in 2004 instead of 78.1% as it was in 2003.  The capital structure is risky due to the large amounts of debt so it is good Kodak is trying to reduce it.

CASE 2.1

1.

LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES

Common Size Balance Sheet

September 30

	
	

	ASSETS
	2004
	
	2003
	

	Current Assets
	
	

	
	Cash and cash equivalents
	20
	%
	24
	%

	
	Marketable securities
	5
	
	4
	

	
	Receivables
	8
	
	9
	

	
	Inventories
	5
	
	4
	

	
	Other current assets
	11
	
	8
	

	
	
	Total Current Assets
	49
	%
	49
	%

	Marketable securities
	4
	
	--
	

	Property, plant and equipment, net
	8
	
	10
	

	Prepaid pension costs
	32
	
	30
	

	Goodwill and other acquired intangibles, net
	2
	
	1
	

	Other assets
	5
	
	10
	

	
	
	Total Assets
	100
	%
	100
	%

	LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS' DEFICIT
	
	
	
	

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Accounts payable
	5
	%
	7
	%

	
	Payroll and benefit-related liabilities
	7
	
	7
	

	
	Debt maturing within one year
	--
	
	2
	

	
	Other current liabilities
	14
	
	15
	

	
	
	Total Current Liabilities
	26
	%
	31
	%

	Noncurrent Liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Postretirement and postemployment benefit liabilities
	29
	
	29
	

	
	Pension liabilities
	11
	
	16
	

	
	Long-term debt
	29
	
	28
	

	
	Liability to subsidiary trust issuing pref. securities
	7
	
	7
	

	
	Other liabilities 
	7
	
	10
	

	
	
	Total Liabilities
	109
	%
	121
	%

	8.00% redeemable convertible preferred stock
	--
	
	5
	


	Shareowners' Deficit
	
	
	
	

	
	Common stock
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Additional paid-in capital
	136
	
	140
	

	
	Accumulated deficit
	(123
	)
	(143
	)

	
	Accumulated other comprehensive loss
	(22
	)
	(23
	)

	
	
	Total Shareowners' Deficit
	(9
	)%
	(26
	)%

	Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and shareowners' deficit
	100
	%
	100
	%

	
	
	
	
	


2.
The individual percentages of assets for Lucent Technologies have shifted within current and noncurrent assets, but current assets remained stable at 49% of total assets.  The most significant current asset, cash has declined, but marketable securities and other current assets have increased.  The company's most significant asset is prepaid pension costs which increased 2% from 2003 to 2004, with property, plant and equipment decreasing an equal amount.  In addition, other assets decreased and long-term marketable securities increased.

Changes have occurred in the debt and equity structure of Lucent Technologies.  Accounts payable and debt maturing within one year have decreased, causing current liabilities to also decrease.  Pensions and other noncurrent liabilities have also decreased.  Despite the decrease in debt, Lucent Technologies has more debt than total assets in both 2003 and 2004.  It appears that Lucent was profitable in 2004 since the accumulated deficit became less negative.  Lucent has an extremely risky debt structure.

3.
Investors and creditors would be concerned about the ability of the firm to generate enough cash to pay the large amounts of debt that will ultimately come due.  Most resources are tied up in prepaid pension costs, items not saleable if cash is needed immediately.  Lucent Technologies' total debt is 109% of total assets, therefore, investors and creditors should be concerned about potential bankruptcy of the firm.

4.
Investors and creditors would want to look at all other financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, the management discussion and analysis, the auditor's report and stock price information.  SEC documents, Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K reports would be a good source of both financial and nonfinancial information.  Financial information of competitors would be useful for comparison purposes.  Nonfinancial information from newspapers and periodicals would also be useful.  In particular, investors and creditors would want to determine the prospects of Lucent Technologies for the future by researching the telecommunications industry.

CASE 2.2

1-800 CONTACTS, INC.

1.



  Common Size Balance Sheet

January 3 and January 1

	
	

	ASSETS
	2004
	
	2005
	

	Current Assets
	
	

	
	Cash 
	1
	%
	3
	%

	
	Accounts receivable, net
	1
	
	3
	

	
	Other receivables
	1
	
	2
	

	
	Inventories, net
	28
	
	20
	

	
	Prepaid income taxes
	1
	
	--
	

	
	Deferred income taxes
	1
	
	1
	

	
	Other current assets
	1
	
	2
	

	
	
	Total Current Assets
	34
	%
	31
	%

	Property, plant and equipment
	
	
	
	

	
	Office, computer and other equipment
	9
	
	7
	

	
	Manufacturing equipment
	4
	
	11
	

	
	Manufacturing facility
	8
	
	7
	

	
	Leasehold improvements
	2
	
	4
	

	
	
	23
	%
	29
	%

	
	Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
	(8
	)
	(10
	)

	
Net property, plant and equipment
	15
	%
	19
	%

	Other assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Deferred income taxes
	1
	
	1
	

	
	Goodwill
	39
	
	31
	

	
	Definite-lived intangibles, net
	10
	
	16
	

	
	Other
	1
	
	2
	

	
	
	Total Other Assets
	51
	%
	50
	%

	
	
	Total Assets
	100
	%
	100
	%


	LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
	
	
	
	

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Current portion of long-term debt
	4
	%
	2
	%

	
	Current portion of capital lease obligations
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Acquisition payable
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Income taxes payable
	--
	
	1
	

	
	Accounts payable
	10
	
	9
	

	
	Accrued liabilities
	5
	
	7
	

	
	Unearned revenue
	--
	
	3
	

	
	
	Total Current Liabilities
	19
	%
	22
	%

	Long-term Liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Line of credit
	--
	
	13
	

	
	Long-term debt, net of current portion
	17
	
	7
	

	
	Capital lease obligations, net of long-term portion
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Deferred income tax liabilities 
	--
	
	1
	

	
	Unearned revenue, net of current portion
	--
	
	2
	

	
	Other long-term liabilities
	--
	
	1
	

	
	
	Total Long-term Liabilities
	17
	%
	24
	%

	
	
	Total Liabilities
	36
	%
	46
	%

	Stockholders' Equity
	
	
	
	

	
	Common stock
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Additional paid-in capital
	49
	
	42
	

	
	Retained earnings
	15
	
	11
	

	
	Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
	--
	
	--
	

	
	
	Total Stockholders' Equity
	64
	%
	54
	%

	
	
	Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
	100
	%
	100
	%


2.
Inventory is the most significant current asset and also makes up 20% of total assets.

3.
Until the most recent year, 2004, (ended January 1, 2005) accounts receivable was an insignificant account to 1-800 Contacts since most customers prepay for their contact lens purchases.  The acquisition of ClearLab, a manufacturer of contact lenses, has caused the Accounts Receivable account to increase and as a result, an allowance for doubtful accounts appears to have been established for the first time in 2004.  As a result, limited analysis can be completed as there is only one year of data.

Allowance account as a percentage of accounts receivable:

	
	2004
	2003

	Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net accounts receivable + allowance
	0.8%
	0.0%


Percent Changes

	
	Change from

2003 to 2004

	Net sales
	13.0
	%

	Total accounts receivable
	239.5
	%

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	Cannot calculate
	


The newly established Allowance account cannot be properly analyzed.  The estimated amount of 0.8% may be adequate given that U.S. retail sales are collected in cash prior to delivery of product and international sales, which appear to have generated the accounts receivable, are only 3.4% of total sales.  Once there is a longer history, more analysis can be completed.  Looking at the increases in sales and accounts receivable is not all that valuable either, since the accounts receivable was such a small number in 2003, the growth in credit sales has caused the percentage increase to be unusually large.

4.
1-800 Contacts is both a retailer and a manufacturing company and therefore carries four types of inventories:  purchased contact lenses, raw materials, work in process and finished goods.  The company uses the FIFO method.  FIFO includes the most recently acquired goods in ending inventory, therefore the amounts for inventories on the balance sheet do reflect current costs.

5.
The answer to this question depends on the assumption made about the effect of inflation on 1-800 Contacts.  If it is assumed that the company operates in an inflationary environment, then the company has probably paid more in taxes, since the lower priced goods would be charged to cost of goods sold, increasing income and taxes.  If it is assumed that 1-800 Contacts operates in a deflationary environment, then the company has probably realized tax savings, since cost of goods sold would include the higher priced goods, causing income and taxes to be lower.

6.
Goodwill, definite-lived intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment are the most significant noncurrent asset categories to 1-800 Contacts, accounting for 66% of total assets.  

The relative proportions of current and noncurrent assets seem reasonable for a company that both manufactures and sells contact lenses as a retailer.  Plant and equipment is necessary for the manufacturing process and inventories are important to both manufacturers and retailers.  Compared to the range of inventories and net fixed assets relative to total asset percentages listed in Exhibits 2.4 and 2.5 of the textbook, the numbers do not seem unusual.  The goodwill and intangible assets seem high; however, 1-800 Contacts has expanded through acquisitions and the company is relatively new which accounts for the large percentages in these two accounts.  The definite-lived intangible assets will ultimately be amortized to zero, resulting in a shift in the asset structure. 

7.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the most significant current liabilities.  Significant noncurrent liabilities include a line of credit and long-term debt.  To fund inventories and daily operations requires both accounts payable and accrued liabilities, so it makes sense that these two accounts are the most significant current accounts.  Using a long-term line of credit and long-term debt to fund manufacturing operations and acquisitions also is appropriate.

8.
The asset structure of 1-800 Contacts has some changes.  Inventories have changed the most, declining 8% from 2003 to 2004.  This is the result of a decreased dollar amount of inventories, as well as increases in other accounts such as accounts and other receivables, manufacturing equipment, leasehold improvements, and intangible assets.

The liability and equity structure has had a significant change as debt increased overall by 10% and equity decreased by the same amount.  With the exceptions of the current portions of debt and the acquisition payable, all current liabilities increased.  All long-term liabilities also increased with the exception of long-term debt, however, the decline in long-term debt appears to be merely a shift from contractual notes to the line of credit.  The equity decline is mainly a result of the increased debt; but retained earnings did decline in dollar amount.  This could be the result of either losses or dividends.

9.
Yes, 1-800 Contacts has commitments as outlined below (in thousands):  

· Operating leases



$  10,340

· Advertising




    14,600

· Purchase of inventory


         322

· Purchase of equipment


      1,600

· Telecommunications service

         665

· Guaranteed fee



         500

Since these commitments are a form of off-balance-sheet financing, they are significant when looking at the debt structure of the company.  Adding the total commitments of $28,027 to the total debt of the company increases obligations to a total of $78,508.

Note:  The percentage of debt was not recalculated since some of the commitments would also add amounts to the asset side of the balance sheet.  To calculate revised percentages requires a more thorough analysis of these commitments.

10.

	Beginning retained earnings
	+
	Net income
	-
	Dividends
	=
	Ending retained earnings

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	$12,834
	+
	($616)
	-
	$0
	=
	$12,218


Chapter 3

3.1
The multiple-step format provides several intermediate profit measures: gross profit, operating profit, and earnings before income taxes.  The single-step format groups revenues together and then deducts all categories to arrive at net earnings.  The multiple-step format is the most useful for analysis.

3.2
Depreciation, amortization, and depletion are all methods of allocating the costs of long-lived assets over their service lives.  The difference among the three methods is the nature of the assets.  Depreciation is used for tangible fixed assets such as buildings, machinery, and equipment.  Amortization is used for intangible assets such as patents, copyrights, trademarks, licenses, franchises and capitalized leases. Depletion is used for natural resources such as oil and gas, minerals, and timberlands.

3.3
For a business firm to operate successfully it must spend a minimum amount on operating expenses to be competitive.  Allowing operating expenses to grow faster than sales growth, however, may indicate a lack of control over expenses, waste or inefficiencies.  Decreasing certain expenses such as advertising, research and development or repairs and maintenance may be detrimental to long-term sales growth.

3.4
The beverage and athletic shoes industries are examples of industries that must advertise regularly or risk losing market share (see example of Coca-Cola and Pepsi in Chapter 1).

The pharmaceutical and high technology industries are examples of industries that must do extensive research and development to create new and innovative products.

3.5
The statement of stockholders' equity summarizes the changes in all of the equity accounts, including the Retained Earnings account.

3.6
The net income figure is based on accounting choices and estimates.  The inventory valuation and depreciation methods chosen can vary significantly and impact differently on net income.  Discretionary items such as advertising and repairs and maintenance can be manipulated to change the net income of a firm.  Use of the equity method for investments may also distort net income.  Nonrecurring and nonoperating items are included in net income.  Net income also incorporates accounting changes and extraordinary items.  Finally, net income does not equal cash flow.

	3.7
	2006 to 2007
	2005 to 2006

	
	
	

	Sales growth
	21.0%
	62.5%

	Operating expense growth
	22.2%
	63.6%


	
	2007
	2006
	2005

	
	
	
	

	Cost of goods sold
	78.8
	%
	76.9
	%
	70.8
	%

	Gross profit margin
	21.2
	23.1
	29.2

	Operating profit margin
	11.9
	13.8
	20.0

	Average tax rate
	42.9
	42.6
	43.8

	Net profit margin
	6.8
	7.9
	11.3


Sales growth over the three-year period is strong, but the rate of increase decreased 2006-2007 relative to 2005-2006. Sales growth could be the result of price increases, volume increases, or both.  The reduction in the gross profit margin indicates problems with inventory cost controls, the pricing of products, or a combination of these factors. The decrease in the operating profit margin is partly a flow-through from the gross profit margin and the result of increasing operating expenses; operating expenses are increasing at a slightly faster rate than sales.  Finally, the combination of problems with inventory management, pricing, and control of operating expenses has produced a deteriorating net profit margin.  Tax expense has not been a contributing factor because the average tax rate decreased between 2005 and 2007.

3.8
Using the equation from Chapter 2, the calculations to determine dividends are as follows:

	
	Beginning retained earnings
	+
	net income
	-
	dividends
	=
	Ending retained earnings

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2007
	
	760
	+
	330
	-
	64
	=
	1,026

	2008
	
	1,026
	+
	200
	-
	55
	=
	1,171

	2009
	
	1,171
	+
	48
	-
	55
	=
	1,164


3.9

	
	Investment Income
	Investment Account

	
	
	

	(a)  Cost method
	$12,500
	*
	$500,000
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(b)  Equity method
	$62,500
	**
	$550,000
	***


* $50,000 cash dividends x 25%

** $250,000 earnings x 25%

*** $500,000 + $62,500 - $12,500

3.10

Coyote Inc.

Income Statement for the Year

	Net sales
	$1,833,000

	Cost of goods sold
	1,072,000

	
	Gross profit
	761,000

	Selling expenses
	279,000

	General and administrative expenses
	175,000

	Depreciation expense
	14,000

	
	Operating profit
	293,000

	Other income (expense)
	

	
	Interest income
	13,000

	
	Interest expense
	(16,000)

	Pre-tax income
	290,000

	
	Income tax expense
	116,000

	Net income
	$174,000


3.11


Yarrick Company

Common Size Income Statement (in percent)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

	
	2007
	2006
	2005

	Net sales
	100.0
	
	100.0
	
	100.0
	

	Cost of goods sold
	58.2
	
	54.2
	
	53.7
	

	Gross profit margin
	41.8
	45.8
	46.3

	Selling, gen. & admin.
	17.7
	20.0
	29.1

	Research & develop.
	16.0
	21.3
	40.3

	Operating profit margin
	8.1
	4.5
	(23.1)

	Income tax expense
	3.0
	1.3
	(8.2)

	Net profit margin
	5.1
	3.2
	(14.9)



Sales have increased 15.7% from 2005 to 2006 and 52.9% from 2006 to 2007 for Yarrick Company.  This increase is the result of volume or price increases.  The gross profit margin has declined each year. Yarrick has either lowered selling prices or costs of goods sold have risen and the company has not passed on those increases to its customers.  

Operating profit margin has surprisingly increased despite the decline in gross profit margin.  This has been achieved by significant reductions in selling, general, and administrative and research and development expenses in 2006.  In dollars these expenses increased in 2007, but from a percentage standpoint decreased due to the large sales growth.  The reduction in these expenses is concerning.  To stay on the cutting edge of its industry it is important for Yarrick to spend enough in research and development.  Cuts in this area may be detrimental to sales growth in the long run.  If advertising is being reduced or key productive personnel are being laid off to achieve the cost reductions in selling, general and administrative expenses, this, too, can negatively impact the company's sales and profits.  If Yarrick has been able to reduce costs through the elimination of waste, this would be a quality change.

Net profit has increased from a loss of $20 to a profit of $12 from 2005 to 2007 due to the above-mentioned changes in operating expenses.  Tax expense has not had a significant impact on the net profit of the firm. 

3.12
Compare the following paragraphs, one more descriptive and the other more analytical.  Have students assess their own writing as to the extent to which they have analyzed rather than described Elf Corporation's profit performance.

Descriptive Paragraph


Net income for Elf Corporation increased by $15 million in 2007 and 2006.  Sales also improved—by $100 million in 2000, but by only $50 million in 2007.  The gross profit margin remained constant over the three-year period at 50%, as did the average tax rate.  Administrative expenses remained constant at $100 million.  Elf Corporation expended $75 million for advertising and marketing in 2005 and 2006 but reduced these expenditures to $50 million in 2007.  Interest expense rose by $20 million in 2006 and 2007.

Analytical Paragraph


Net income for Elf Corporation increased in 2006 and 2007, but at a decreasing rate.  Sales also improved both years, but at a decreasing rate.  Elf Corporation maintained a 50% gross profit margin, reflecting the firm's ability to control the cost of products sold or to pass along price increases to customers.  The increase in the rate of profit was impaired in 2005 by slower sales growth and by continued high interest expense.  The rise in interest expense could be due to higher interest rates but probably is evidence of increased corporate borrowing, which could signal problems or be the result of expansion.  The $50 million increase in operating profit in 2007 has been achieved by reducing expenditures for advertising and marketing, which could help explain the slower sales growth in 2007 and could impair sales in the future.

3.13
Students’ answers will differ unless specific companies are assigned by the instructor.

3.14
There is no solution presented here since the list of technical projects on the FASB agenda is ever changing.

3.15

	(a)
	INTEL  

Common Size Income Statement



	
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2002
	

	
	Sales
	100.0
	%
	100.0
	%
	100.0
	%

	
	Cost of Sales
	42.3
	
	43.3
	
	50.2
	

	
	Gross Profit
	57.7
	%
	56.7
	%
	49.8
	%

	
	Research and development
	14.0
	
	14.5
	
	15.1
	

	
	Marketing, general and administrative
	13.6
	
	14.2
	
	16.2
	

	
	Impairment of goodwill
	--
	
	2.0
	
	--
	

	
	Amortization and impair. of acquisition-related intangibles
	0.5
	
	1.0
	
	2.1
	

	
	Purchased in-process research and development
	--
	
	--
	
	--
	

	
	Operating income
	29.6
	%
	25.0
	%
	16.4
	%

	
	Losses on equity securities, net
	(--
	)
	(0.9
	)
	(1.4
	)

	
	Interest and other, net
	0.8
	
	0.6
	
	0.7
	

	
	Income before taxes
	30.4
	%
	24.7
	%
	15.7
	%

	
	Provision for taxes
	8.5
	
	6.0
	
	4.1
	

	
	Net Income
	21.9
	%
	18.7
	%
	11.6
	%

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Effective tax rate
	27.8
	%
	24.2
	%
	25.9
	%


	
	Growth rates
	2003 - 2004
	2002- 2003

	
	Net revenues
	13.5
	%
	12.6
	%

	
	Total operating costs
	0.6
	%
	7.0
	%


Analysis of Income Statement

Revenues for Intel have been increasing at a steady rate over the three-year period from 2002 to 2004.  Operating expenses have not increased proportionately with the revenue increases, resulting in increased profitability for the company.  Revenue increases are mainly a result of increased volume of sales.  

The gross profit margin has increased significantly over the three-year period.  The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) explains why this occurred.   Intel was able to lower costs in the Architecture Business, while at the same time increasing sales.  The Intel Communications Group negatively impacted the gross profit margin due to the write-down of inventory due to lower replacement costs as well as higher unit costs for flash memory products.

Operating profit has increased each year, a result of the gross profit improvements as well as changes in other operating expenses.  On a percentage basis, operating expenses have declined relative to sales as a result of solid sales growth without a corresponding increase in costs.  Research and development dollars have increased each year and this is a good sign since it is important for Intel to continually develop new and innovative products.  Marketing, general and administrative expenses declined in dollars in 2003, but have increased in 2004.  Intel did not reduce advertising dollars, but rather was able to cut costs in 2003 as a result of reduced headcount as they refocused on core strategic areas.  In 2003 Intel recorded what appears to be a one-time impairment charge for goodwill related to the Wireless Communications and Computing Group.  This division has not performed as well as expected.

In all three years Intel incurred losses on their equity securities.  Its losses are most likely attributed to a weak economy and stock market over the past three years.  The good news is that the losses were much less in 2004 compared to 2003 and 2002.

Interest income and other, net, increased in 2004, due to higher investment balances and higher interest rates.  

Intel's effective tax rate is relatively low compared to the statutory rate of 35%.  The firm appears to be benefiting from tax losses due to divestitures and export sales benefits.

Net profits are healthy and increasing.   If costs are managed well, profits should continue to trend upward.  To continue to be successful, Intel must maintain good control of expenses, while continuing to develop cutting edge products. 
(b)
The Common Stock account has decreased over the three-year period due to the repurchase and retirement of common stock.  Nowhere does Intel explain why they are repurchasing so much of its own stock.  Since the company is retiring the stock, it is definitely not for an investment and the quantity of shares repurchased is much greater than its needs for employee stock programs.  The most likely explanation is that Intel is trying to increase the earnings per share number in order to increase the share price of its stock.  

Accumulated other comprehensive income has increased from 2002 to 2004.  The cause of the change is mainly from unrealized gains on investments.

The Retained Earnings account increased all three years due to profits generated.  Intel doubled its dividend in 2004 as well.

3.16
(a)


[image: image3.emf]2004 2003 2002

Net sales 13,517 $              12,909 $              12,549 $             

Yes

Less: Cost of goods sold 9,548                   8,734                   8,022                  

    Gross profit 3,969                   4,175                   4,527                  

  Sales, general and administrative 2,507                   2,618                   2,504                  

Research and development  (R&D) 854                      776                      757                     

Restructuring, impairment, and amortization 695                      479                      98                       

Purchased in-process R&D

Other operating expenses

  Total operating expenses 4,056                   3,873                   3,359                  

    Operating profit (loss) (87)                       302                      1,168                  

Other income (expenses), net excluding interest expense 161                      (51)                       (101)                    

  Earnings (loss) before interest and taxes 74                        251                      1,067                  

Interest expense 168                      147                      173                     

  Earnings (loss) before taxes (94)                       104                      894                     

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (175)                     (85)                       133                     

  Earnings (loss) after taxes 81                        189                      761                     

Extraordinary items, net

Discontinued operations, net 475                      64                        9                         

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net

Other after-tax income (loss), net

    Net profit (loss) 556 $                   253 $                   770 $                  

Basic earnings per common share 0.28 $                  0.66 $                  2.61 $                 

Enter following data only if Multiple Source information is available

Results for the Years Ending December 31

Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

Annual Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts Rounded to : Millions      (except per share amounts)

 


[image: image4.emf]2004 2003 2002

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Less: Cost of goods sold 70.6% 67.7% 63.9%

    Gross profit 29.4% 32.3% 36.1%

Sales, general and administrative 18.5% 20.3% 20.0%

Research and development  (R&D) 6.3% 6.0% 6.0%

Restructuring, impairment, and amortization 5.1% 3.7% 0.8%

Purchased in-process R&D 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Other operating expenses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

  Total operating expenses 30.0% 30.0% 26.8%

    Operating profit (loss)

-0.6% 2.3% 9.3%

Other income (expenses), net excluding interest expense 1.2% -0.4% -0.8%

  Earnings (loss) before interest and taxes 0.5% 1.9% 8.5%

Interest expense 1.2% 1.1% 1.4%

  Earnings (loss) before taxes -0.7% 0.8% 7.1%

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes -1.3% -0.7% 1.1%

  Earnings (loss) after taxes 0.6% 1.5% 6.1%

Extraordinary items, net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Discontinued operations, net 3.5% 0.5% 0.1%

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Other after-tax income (loss), net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

    Net profit (loss) 4.1% 2.0%

6.1%

Effective tax rate N/M N/M 14.9%

Results for the Years Ending December 31

Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

Annual Common Size Income Statement

Summary percentages in italics  will not foot due to rounding


[image: image5.emf]2004 2003 2002

Revenues by Source as a % of Net Sales

DF&S 68.0% 71.6% 71.7%

Health 19.9% 18.8% 18.1%

Commercial Imaging 5.9% 6.1% 6.3%

GraphicCommunications and Other 5.4% 2.7% 3.2%

Other revenues 0.9% 0.7% 0.6%

Summary of revenue sources as a % of net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

COGS as a % of Associated Revenue Source

DF&S 71.6% 69.0% 64.2%

Health 58.0% 57.0% 59.1%

Commercial Imaging 66.3% 66.2% 64.3%

GraphicCommunications and Other 81.9% 85.8% 78.4%

Other cost of goods sold 247.5% 153.8% 88.8%

Gross Profit Margin for Associated Revenue Source

DF&S 28.4% 31.0% 35.8%

Health 42.0% 43.0% 40.9%

Commercial Imaging 33.7% 33.8% 35.7%

GraphicCommunications and Other 18.1% 14.2% 21.6%

Other revenues (147.5%) (53.8%) 11.3%

Results for the Years Ending December 31

Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

Annual Common Size Multiple Source Revenue & COGS

Summary percentages in italics  will not foot due to rounding


(b)
Eastman Kodak (Kodak) has generated sales growth at an increasing rate each year, but it is not all that impressive.  Worse is that Kodak's operating costs grew at 15.3% when sales only grew 2.9% from 2002 to 2003.  Costs were better controlled in 2004, but not enough to cover the increase that occurred in cost of goods sold, therefore leading to an operating loss.  Sales growth is mainly a result of acquisitions and the effect of foreign exchange rates.  In fact, Kodak's largest segment, Digital & Film Imaging Systems, experienced a 1% decrease in sales.

Gross profit margin is declining significantly every year and is now below 30%.  This is the result of price declines in traditional film products.  Kodak has not been able to replace its high-margin film products with comparable margin digital products.  One positive area is the increase in gross profit margin in the Graphic Communications segment, a result of acquisitions in 2004.

Kodak generated an operating loss in 2004.  Operating profit margin in 2003 decreased as a result of the declining gross profit margin combined with an increase in selling, general and administrative (SGA) expenses and restructuring costs.  In 2004, Kodak reduced SGA expenses, but research and development (R&D) and restructuring costs increased.  SGA expenses increased slightly in 2003 due to asset impairments and legal settlements, but these items declined in 2004.  Employee positions were eliminated in 2004 and advertising was reduced.  As Kodak moves into the digital area it seems that more, rather than less, funding should be used to advertise new products.  

R&D has been increased each year which is usually a good sign that a firm is trying to innovate; however, careful reading of the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) reveals that some of the increase is a result of writing off purchased in-process R&D in prior years compared to the most recent year.  Most companies record this item as a separate line on their income statements, but Kodak has hidden this information.  

Restructuring costs have increased each year as Kodak tries to transition from film to digital products.  The company is laying off large numbers of employees and selling off plant and equipment.  The information Kodak offers in its MDA regarding restructuring costs focuses more on the downsizing of the firm without much said about how they intend to move successfully into the digital area.

Net profit margin is positive all years, despite the 2004 operating loss.  The other income in 2004 is a result of legal settlements in Kodak's favor, a one-time, nonrecurring item.  Interest expense has declined and then increased over the three years as interest rates declined and then increased.  The tax benefits in 2004 and 2003, and the low 14.9% tax rate in 2002 are a result of earnings in lower-taxed jurisdictions outside of the United States combined with losses incurred in higher-taxed jurisdictions.  Finally, Kodak has benefited from a one-time gain from discontinued operations.

Kodak has many challenges to overcome.  Its strategy so far, has not been beneficial in terms of profitability.

CASE 3.1
DILLARD'S, INC.

1.
The format of the income statement is a single-step format.  All revenues have been combined and all expenses have been combined, without regard to whether the item is operating or nonoperating.  This format does not allow the analyst to assess the core operations of the firm separate from the investing and financing activities of the firm.  By using a multiple-step format, the analyst can assess the core operations and also identify strengths and weaknesses of the company by analyzing the intermediate profit numbers--gross profit, operating profit and income before taxes, as well as net profit.

	2.


	Dillard's, Inc.*
Common Size Income Statement
(Percent)

	
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Net Sales
	100.0
	100.0
	100.0

	Cost of sales
	66.6
	68.0
	66.4

	     Gross profit
	33.4
	32.0
	33.6

	Advertising, selling, administrative and general
	27.9
	27.6
	27.3

	Depreciation and amortization
	4.0
	3.8
	3.8

	Rentals
	0.7
	0.9
	0.9

	Asset impairment and store closing charges
	0.3
	0.6
	0.7

	     Operating profit
	0.5
	(0.9)
	0.9

	Service charges, Interest and Other income
	3.8
	3.5
	4.1

	Interest and debt expense
	(1.8)
	(2.4)
	(2.4)

	     Income before income taxes 
	2.5
	0.2
	2.6

	Income taxes
	0.9
	0.1
	0.9

	Income before cumulative effect of accounting change
	1.6
	0.1
	1.7

	Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit of $0
	--
	--
	(6.7)

	     Net Income (Loss)
	1.6
	0.1
	(5.0)


	(b)
	2003-2004
	2002-2003

	Sales growth
	(0.9%)
	
	(3.9%)

	Operating cost growth*
	(2.3%)
	
	(2.2%)


*Includes Cost of goods sold.
	
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Effective tax rate
	36.2%
	41.6%
	35.4%


*Although Dillard's fiscal year-end is January 29, 2005, January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003, the fiscal years are referred to as 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

3.
Dillard's sales and operating cost growth have declined in both 2003 and 2004, but not proportionately.  Dillard's was better able to control costs in 2004 compared to 2003.  It appears that the company has made positive progress in increasing sales in the Cosmetics, Shoes, Accessories, and Lingerie divisions, but still has much work to do to determine why sales are declining in all other areas.  

Gross profit margin declined in 2003 and increased in 2004.  Both the decline and the increase are a result of higher, then lower markdown activity.  Dillard's needs to purchase inventories in demand that do not need to be marked down and it appears that perhaps they have recognized this in 2004.  

Other operating expenses are stable with the exception of asset impairments which are declining each year.  Depreciation has increased, while rentals have decreased, perhaps because Dillard's is using more owned assets or capital leases, compared to operating leases.  The asset impairment charges are related mainly to store closings, so once the stores are formally closed these charges should decline.  

Income before taxes declined in 2003, but increased in 2004.  Other income was lower in 2003, but increased in 2004.  In addition, interest expense has declined in 2004.  Either Dillard's has less debt or interest rates have dropped.  Since interest rates were rising in 2004, it is more likely that debt has been paid down.  

The income tax rate seems reasonable in 2002 and 2004, but is somewhat high in 2003.  This is a result of not being able to deduct the write-off of goodwill.

Net income followed the same pattern as operating profit and income before taxes, except in 2002.  A net loss was incurred in 2002 as a result of the cumulative effect of an accounting change.  The change was to record impairment charges as a result of implementing the FASB rule No. 142.  

Dillard's operates in the highly competitive retail environment and needs to reassess its product lines in most divisions.  The company does not appear to be competing well, but seems to have recognized this in 2004 and is making adjustments that have improved profitability.

CASE 3.2

APPLIED MATERIALS, INC.

	1.

(a)
	Applied Materials, Inc.
Common Size Income Statement
(Percent)

	
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Net sales
	100.0
	100.0
	100.0

	COGS
	53.8
	64.2
	59.4

	      Gross margin
	46.2
	35.8
	40.6

	Research and development and engineering
	12.4
	20.5
	20.8

	Marketing and selling
	4.9
	7.3
	7.6

	General and administrative
	4.5
	6.7
	6.4

	Restructuring, asset impairments and other charges
	2.1
	8.3
	1.7

	Litigation settlements, net
	0.3
	--
	--

	       Income/(loss) from operations
	22.0
	(7.0)
	4.1

	Interest expense
	(0.7)
	(1.0)
	(1.0)

	Interest income
	1.5
	3.3
	3.6

	     Income/(loss) before taxes 
	22.8
	(4.7)
	6.7

	Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes
	6.0
	(1.4)
	1.4

	     Net income/(loss)
	16.8
	(3.3)
	5.3


	(b)
	2003-2004
	2002-2003

	Sales growth
	79.0%
	
	(11.6%)

	Operating cost growth*
	30.4%
	
	(1.3%)


*Includes Cost of goods sold.
	(c)
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Effective tax rate
	26.1%
	29.5%
	21.0%


2.
Volatility in the high technology industry is evident when looking at the past three years of income statement information for Applied Materials.  Applied had a sales decline from 2002 to 2003, but operating costs did not decrease proportionately and the company operated at a loss.  However, from 2003 to 2004 sales growth increased significantly while operating costs increased at less than half the sales growth rate.  

The gross profit margin reflects the extreme volatility in the high technology industry.  From 2002 to 2003 the decrease in gross profit could be a result of lower selling prices or higher cost of goods sold; however, in this industry, many of the costs are probably fixed such as equipment and buildings used to make the products.  The decline was more likely due to decreases in sales and the inability for the company to reduce overhead costs proportionately.  The opposite has occurred in 2004.

Operating profit follows the same pattern as gross profit, decreasing in 2003, but rebounding significantly in 2004.  The percentage figures are skewed in 2004 due to the large increases in the sales numbers.  In raw dollars, research and development and engineering, marketing and selling, and general and administrative costs have increased in 2004, but the percentages on the common size income statement have decreased.  In 2003, Applied tried to make adjustments for the severe economic downturn by downsizing, and the cost of this restructuring is the reason for the operating loss that year.  Since this should be a one-time, nonrecurring event, a portion of the charge should be ignored when comparing one year to the next.  Another one-time event occurred in 2004 when Applied settled litigation proceedings.  

Net profit margin has followed the same trend as operating profit margin for the same reasons.  However, the loss in 2003 generated positive tax benefits for Applied, resulting in a higher net profit margin relative to operating profit margin.  Interest expense has been stable each year; however, interest income has declined.  This could be due to lower amounts invested or a decline in interest rates, but since Applied spent more on realignment activities in 2003, and revenues had declined, it is probably a result of lower amounts invested.  

Applied appears to have made good decisions in realigning its operations during the economic downturn and now that the industry and economy are beginning to turn around, Applied is reaping the benefits.  

Chapter 4
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4.3 (a)

	Beginning retained earnings
	+
	Net income
	-
	Dividends
	=
	Ending retained earnings

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	$3,600
	+
	$1,050
	-
	$200
	=
	$4,450


	 (b)
	Luna Enterprises

Statement of Cash Flows 

For Year Ending December 31, 2009



	
	Cash flow from operating activities
	
	

	
	
	Net income
	$1,050
	

	
	
	Noncash operating items:
	
	

	
	
	Depreciation
	100
	

	
	Cash provided (used) by current assets and liabilities:
	
	

	
	
	Accounts receivable
	(550
	)

	
	
	Inventory
	300
	

	
	
	Accounts payable
	300
	

	
	
	Accrued wages payable
	(100
	)

	
	Net cash provided by operating activities
	1,100
	

	
	Cash flows from investing activities
	
	

	
	
	Purchase of plant and equipment
	(600
	)

	
	
	Sale of long-term investments
	250
	

	
	Net cash used for investing activities
	(350
	)

	
	Cash flows from financing activities
	
	

	
	
	Decrease in bonds payable
	(300
	)

	
	
	Payment of dividends
	(200
	)

	
	Net cash used by financing activities
	(500
	)

	
	
	
	

	
	Increase in cash
	250
	


4.4 (a)
Net income - Change in retained earnings = Dividends

Firm A
$75,000
- 
$70,000

        =
       $  5,000

Firm B
$75,000
-
$40,000

        =
       $35,000

	 (b)
	Firm A
	Firm B

	Cash flow from operating activities
	
	
	
	

	
	Net income
	$
	75,000
	
	$
	75,000
	

	
	Depreciation
	
	10,000
	
	
	30,000
	

	
	Deferred taxes
	
	3,000
	
	
	18,000
	

	
	Accounts receivable
	
	(40,000
	)
	
	(5,000
	)

	
	Inventory
	
	(40,000
	)
	
	10,000
	

	
	Accounts payable
	
	(20,000
	)
	
	(5,000
	)

	Cash provided (used) by operations
	($
	12,000
	)
	$
	123,000
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash flow from investing activities
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Purchase of plant, property and equipment
	($
	20,000
	)
	($
	70,000
	)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash flow from financing activities
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Short-term debt
	$
	17,000
	
	$
	2,000
	

	
	Long-term debt
	
	20,000
	
	
	(10,000
	)

	
	Dividends paid
	
	(5,000
	)
	
	(35,000
	)

	Net cash flow from financing activities
	$
	32,000
	
	($
	43,000
	)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Change in cash
	$
	0
	
	$
	10,000
	


	(c)
	Firm A
	Firm B

	Inflows
	$
	%
	$
	%

	Operating activities
	0
	0
	123,000
	98

	Short-term debt
	17,000
	46
	2,000
	2

	Long-term debt
	20,000
	54
	0
	0

	
	37,000
	100
	125,000
	100

	Outflows
	
	
	
	

	Operating activities
	12,000
	32
	0
	0

	Purchase of PP&E
	20,000
	54
	70,000
	61

	Reduction of long-term debt
	0
	0
	10,000
	9

	Dividends paid
	5,000
	14
	35,000
	30

	
	37,000
	100
	115,000
	100

	
	
	
	
	

	Change in cash
	0
	
	10,000
	


Both firms reported net income of $75,000, but, in reality, they had an entirely different operating performance, because Firm B had a strong positive operating cash flow, and Firm A had to borrow to finance operations, the purchase of capital assets, and the payment of dividends.  Firm B was able to reduce debt while expanding capital assets and paying dividends.  This problem illustrates the importance of cash flow as a performance measure.

	4.5
	Little Bit, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows 

For Year Ended December 31, 2009

	
	

	Cash flow from operating activities
	
	

	
	Net income
	
	$    5,500
	

	
	Noncash expenses included in net income:
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation
	
	18,000
	

	
	Deferred income taxes 
	
	500
	

	Cash provided by (used for) current assets and liabilities
	
	
	

	
	Accounts receivable 
	
	(6,500
	)

	
	Inventory 
	
	(8,500
	)

	
	Prepaid expenses
	
	(4,000
	)

	
	Accounts payable 
	
	2,000
	

	
	Accrued salaries payable 
	
	(16,000
	)

	Net cash used by operating activities
	(
	$    9,000
	)

	Cash flows from investing activities
	
	
	

	
	Purchase of plant and equipment
	
	(6,000
	)

	
	Purchase of long-term investments
	
	(1,000
	)

	Net cash used by investing activities
	(
	$    7,000
	)

	Cash flows from financing activities
	
	
	

	
	Additions to long-term debt
	
	17,000
	

	
	Sale of common stock
	
	15,000
	

	Net cash provided by financing activities
	
	$  32,000
	

	
	
	
	

	Increase in cash
	
	$  16,000
	


Analysis

	Inflows
	$
	%

	Long-term debt
	17,000
	53

	Sale of common stock
	15,000
	47

	Total
	32,000
	100

	
	
	

	Outflows
	
	

	Operating activities
	9,000
	56

	Purchase of property and equipment
	6,000
	38

	Purchase of long-term investments
	1,000
	6

	Total
	16,000
	100


Little Bit, Inc., failed to generate cash from operating activities due primarily to growth in inventories, receivables and prepaid expenses, combined with the payment of accrued liabilities.  The firm may be expanding as evidenced by the increase in capital assets.

The expansion is being supported primarily by long-term debt and the sale of common stock. It would appear that Little Bit is using long-term debt not only for the acquisition of plant and equipment, but also to cover the negative cash flow from operations.  This is generally not good to match long-term debt maturities with the financing of current assets.

It is essential that Little Bit generate cash flow in the future to lessen the need for debt, perhaps by controlling the growth of inventories and receivables.

4.6

(a)
Cash provided by operations in 2008 is considerably less than net income.  The major reason is the $288.2 million increase in accounts receivable.  Inventory also increased substantially ($159.4 million) but the growth in inventory was comparable to what the firm experienced in 2007.  Additions to plant and equipment were about the same in 2008 as 2007, so the increase in receivables appears out of line with overall expansion.  Techno may be loosening credit to customers in order to stimulate sales and income (note increase in net income between 2007 and 2008), but the result of the receivables management is a sharp reduction in operating cash flow.  If the firm continues to build receivables at the same pace, Techno will likely experience negative operating cash flow in 2009.

	(b)
	2008
	
	2007
	

	Inflows
	$
	%
	$
	%

	Operations
	24,525
	8.2
	177,387
	78.1

	Investment activities
	14,408
	4.8
	0
	0

	Short-term borrowings
	125,248
	41.8
	45,067
	19.9

	Add. to long-term borrowings
	135,249
	45.2
	4,610
	2.0

	
	299,430
	100.0
	227,064
	100.0

	Outflows
	
	
	
	

	Add. to plant and equipment
	94,176
	49.8
	93,136
	21.2

	Investment activities
	0
	0
	34,771
	7.9

	Purchase of treasury stock
	45,854
	24.2
	39,267
	8.9

	Dividends
	49,290
	26.0
	22,523
	5.1

	Repay long-term borrowings
	0
	0
	250,564
	56.9

	
	189,320
	100.0
	440,361
	100.0

	
	
	
	
	

	Change in cash
	110,110
	
	(213,197)
	


In 2007 Techno generated most of its cash (78%) internally through operations.  About 20% came from short-term borrowings, apparently to finance working capital.  As the result of a strong operating cash flow and a large cash account balance ($291 million) Techno was able to expand plant and equipment while reducing by $250.5 million its long-term borrowings and to add long-term investments.  A sharply reduced cash flow from operations in 2008 (see discussion in "a" above) resulted in the need for heavy long-term and short-term borrowings to support growth in receivables, inventory, and plant and equipment.  The apparent use of some long-term borrowing for working capital needs could be a problem in the future.  Techno also more than doubled its payment of dividends in spite of the decrease in operating cash flow.  Given, however, that Techno ended the year with a cash balance of $188.2 million, the firm does not appear to have any immediate liquidity problems.  The analyst would want to explore the cause of the buildup in receivables in 2008.

4.7
What follows is a sample article.  The article should include the following key points: 1) cash flow from operations is different from net income; 2) a brief explanation of why the two measurements differ; and 3) cash is what is needed to stay afloat.  A good basis for the article is the example of the "Nocash Corporation" in Chapter 4.


Your business may be on its way to bankruptcy even though you are showing a healthy profit.  Net income, the bottom line of the income statement, is not the same thing as cash flow from operations.  As any business owner knows, it is cash that the firm needs to pay its employees, bankers, and suppliers.

Net income is an accounting measurement that doesn't actually show cash coming in from the company's business operations.  For example, the company's sales may be growing due to the extension of credit to an increasing number of customers who aren't going to pay their bills.  Sales are counted in net income, but the cash may not come in at all.  The company may be building inventory that will eventually have to be sold at a loss or not sold at all—that problem affects cash flow but isn't showing up on the income statement yet.  If suppliers hear about all these problems, they may quit selling goods to the company on credit, so some of the cash outflow that has been in essence delayed (for accounting purposes in calculating net income) will have to be paid out immediately.

To get through this patch, the company may have to borrow to cover the cash shortage, which will require future cash for debt service.  If the company doesn't turn things around, the problems will compound, leading to potential disaster.

The key to avoiding all of this is to keep a close eye on cash flow from operations as well as net income because that is what the bankers and the suppliers and investors are going to be watching.

4.8
There is no solution presented here as the students will be choosing a variety of companies.

4.9
The net income for 1-800 Contacts was a profit of $9,864 in 2001, but declined to losses of $4,004 and $1,438 for 2002 and 2003.  (All numbers are in thousands.)  Cash used or provided from operating activities was a negative $6,817 in 2001, but increased to positive $9,508 and $18,644 in 2002 and 2003.  The key reason for this abnormal trend is the large increase in inventory in 2001 and subsequent reductions in inventory in 2002 and 2003.  

Reading the Management's Discussion and Analysis and Item 1 of 1-800 Contacts' Form 10-K explains the reasons for the change in inventories.  Prior to November 2003, most suppliers of contact lenses refused to sell to direct marketers.  1-800 Contacts stockpiled inventory as a result, but no longer needed to do this after Congress passed legislation forcing suppliers of contacts to work with direct marketers. 

The net losses are a result of higher legal expenses due to significant lobbying efforts.  The company also made an acquisition of a manufacturer of contact lenses which increased operating expenses and write-offs of purchased in-process research and development.  

It appears that the items causing the abnormal trend will disappear in future years.

	4.10
	Intel

Statement of Cash Flows Summary Analysis



	
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Inflows:
	$
	%
	$
	%
	$
	%

	Operations
	13,119
	44
	11,515
	55
	9,129
	59

	Maturities and sales of available-for-sale investments
	15,633
	53
	8,488
	40
	5,634
	36

	Increase in short-term debt
	24
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Increase in long-term debt
	0
	0
	0
	0
	55
	1

	Proceeds from sales of shares
	894
	3
	967
	5
	681
	4

	Total Inflows
	29,670
	100
	20,970
	100
	15,499
	100

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Outflows:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Additions to PPE
	3,843
	13
	3,656
	18
	4,703
	29

	Acquisitions, net of cash
	53
	0
	61
	0
	57
	0

	Purchase of available-for-sale investments
	16,618
	57
	11,662
	57
	6,309
	40

	Other, investing
	151
	1
	199
	1
	330
	2

	Decrease in short-term debt
	0
	0
	152
	1
	101
	1

	Repayments and retirement of debt
	31
	0
	137
	1
	18
	0

	Repurchase and retirement of common stock
	7,516
	26
	4,012
	20
	4,014
	25

	Payments of dividends
	1,022
	3
	524
	2
	533
	3

	Total Outflows
	29,234
	100
	20,403
	100
	16,065
	100

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Change in cash
	436
	
	567
	
	(566)
	


Intel generates much cash from operations (CFO).  CFO is larger than net income in all three years.  This is mainly due to depreciation and amortization (noncash expenses).  Accounts receivable, inventories and accounts payable are increasing but not at alarming amounts.

The low percentage of cash flow from operations is explained by the purchases and ultimate maturities of investments.  In all three years at least 95% of cash has been generated from operations or maturities of investments.  Neither short-term nor long-term debt has been used significantly to generate cash.  Some cash has been generated from the sale of stock to employees.

The largest use of cash is to purchase available-for-sale investments.  Intel has generated so much cash throughout its history that the company has extra cash to invest until it is needed for acquisitions and capital expenditures.  

The company continues to invest yearly in new property, plant and equipment which is an expected expenditure for this type of firm.  It is good that Intel is spending dollars in this area.  

Another use of cash is for the repurchase and retirement of common stock.  While this may benefit stockholders in the form of capital appreciation of their stock, one must consider whether this is the best use of excess cash for the company. Intel increased its repurchases of common stock significantly in 2004, but also doubled the amount of cash dividends paid to shareholders.

Intel’s cash position is solid.  The company generates good cash flow from operations and as a result should be able to meet future financing needs easily.

4.11 (a)

[image: image6.emf]2004 2003 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:

Income (loss) from continuing operations 81 $                    189 $                  761 $                 

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:

  Restructuring charges 130                     156                     85                      

  Impairment charges

  Depreciation and amortization 1,030                  864                     834                    

  (Gain) loss on sales of investments, acquisitions, and securities (13)                      (11)                      (24)                     

  (Gain) loss on sales of property, plant, and equipment

  Increase (decrease) in provision for deferred income taxes (37)                      (49)                      (224)                   

  Other non-cash items, net (4)                        84                       105                    

  Changes in assets and liabilities:

    (Increase) decrease in receivables (43)                      15                       276                    

    (Increase) decrease in inventories 83                       118                     93                      

    (Increase) decrease in other current assets

    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 

       accrued liabilities, and income taxes payable

(283)                    103                     (1)                       

    Increase (decrease) in deferred liabilities

    Other assets and liabilities, net 202                     98                       264                    

  Net cash provided by (used in ) operating activities 1,146                  1,567                  2,169                 

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment

(460)                    (497)                    (571)                   

Sales of property, plant, and equipment 24                       24                       27                      

Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments (116)                    (87)                      (101)                   

Sales of marketable securities and short-term investments

124                     86                       88                      

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (369)                    (697)                    (72)                     

Other investing activities, net (31)                      (89)                      (123)                   

  Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (828)                    (1,260)                 (752)                   

Cash flows from financing activities:

Short-term borrowings, net

(308)                    (574)                    (210)                   

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 147                     1,693                  759                    

Payment of long-term borrowings (767)                    (531)                    (1,146)                

Proceeds from sales of common stock 5                         12                       51                      

Repurchase of common stock / treasury stock (260)                   

Dividends to shareholders (143)                    (330)                    (525)                   

Other financing activities, net

  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,066)                 270                     (1,331)                

Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued operations 730                     71                       29                      

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net 23                       33                       6                        

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents for period 5                         681                     121                    

Cash and equivalents, beginning of period 1,250                  569                     448                    

Cash and equivalents, end of period

1,255 $               1,250 $               569 $                 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:

  Interest 169 137                     173                    

  Income taxes (refunded) 72 66                       201                    

Results for the Years Ending December 31

Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

Annual Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts Rounded to : Millions
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2004 %  2003 %  2002 % 

Inflows $ $ $

Proceeds from operating activities 1,146                   52.1               1,567                   45.0               2,169                   69.3              

Sales of property, plant, and equipment 24                        1.1                 24                        0.7                 27                        0.9                

Sales of marketable securities and short-term investments 124                     

5.6                

86                       

2.5                

88                       

2.8                

Divestiture of acquisitions, net of cash acquired -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from other investing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from short-term borrowings, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 147                      6.7                 1,693                   48.6               759                      24.3              

Proceeds from sales of common stock 5                          0.2                 12                        0.3                 51                        1.6                

Proceeds from other financing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from discontinued operations 730                      33.2               71                        2.0                 29                        0.9                

Gains from effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net 23                        1.1                 33                        0.9                 6                          0.2                

Total Inflows 2,199 $                100.0 3,486 $                100.0 3,129 $                100.0

Outflows $ $ $

Losses from operating activities -                           -                           -                          

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment 460                      21.0               497                      17.7               571                      19.0              

Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments 116                      5.3                 87                        3.1                 101                      3.4                

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 369                      16.8               697                      24.8               72                        2.4                

Losses from other investing activities, net 31                       

1.4                

89                       

3.2                

123                     

4.1                

Payment of short-term borrowings, net 308                      14.0               574                      20.5               210                      7.0                

Payment of long-term borrowings 767                      35.0               531                      18.9               1,146                   38.1              

Repurchase of common stock / treasury stock -                           -                           260                      8.6                

Payment of dividends to shareholders 143                      6.5                 330                      11.8               525                      17.4              

Payment of other financing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Losses from discontinued operations -                           -                           -                          

Losses from effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net -                           -                           -                          

Total Outflows 2,194 $                100.0 2,805 $                100.0 3,008 $                100.0

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5                          681                      121                     

Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

Annual Summary Analysis Statement of Cash Flows

Summary percentages in italics do not foot due to rounding differences

Results for the Years Ending December 31



(b)
Kodak generates good cash flow from operating activities (CFO), although the dollar amount has decreased from 2002 to 2004.  CFO is larger than net income each year due to the noncash charges of depreciation and amortization.

Other significant sources of cash flow vary from year to year.  In 2002 and 2003, long-term debt was the other key source of cash.  Proceeds from long-term debt provided cash inflows in 2004, but not as much as in prior years.  In addition the firm generated cash from discontinued operations.  A small amount of cash has been generated from selling short-term investments.

Kodak uses between 45 and 49% of cash outflows to repay short-term and long-term debt each year.  Cash is also used to purchase new property, plant and equipment and acquire other companies.  This is an expected and appropriate use of the firm's funds.  Treasury stock was purchased in 2002, but Kodak has not continued repurchasing stock in later years.  This is probably a good strategy since paying down the large amounts of debt the company has outstanding should be a priority.  Kodak has also reduced the amount of dividends paid to shareholders every year. This too is appropriate based on Kodak's risky debt structure and the current restructuring to transition into the digital area.  The company still has a limited amount of cash to invest in marketable securities.  

In the future, Kodak should be able to continue to generate cash and pay off debt while expanding into the digital area.

CASE 4.1

PETMED EXPRESS, INC.

	1.
	PetMed Express, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows Summary Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31



	
	2004
	%
	2003
	%
	2002
	%

	Inflows:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash from operations
	1,105,595
	36
	970,301
	62
	476,024
	18

	Net proceeds from the sale of property and equipment
	0
	0
	15,000
	1
	2,016,921
	75

	Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants 
	1,999,345
	64
	580,836
	37
	0
	0

	Borrowings from loan obligations
	0
	0
	0
	0
	205,327
	7

	     Total Inflows
	3,104,940
	100.0
	1,566,137
	100.0
	2,698,272
	100.0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Outflows:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Purchases of property and equipment
	741,740
	92
	744,596
	56
	555,645
	23

	Purchases of intangible asset
	0
	0
	365,000
	28
	0
	

	Payments on the line of credit
	0
	0
	141,214
	11
	0
	

	Payments on loan obligation
	68,443
	8
	68,442
	5
	0
	

	Payments on capital lease obligation
	0
	0
	0
	0
	247,209
	11

	Payments on mortgage payable
	0
	0
	0
	0
	1,566,833
	66

	     Total Outflows
	810,183
	100.0
	1,319,252
	100.0
	2,369,687
	100.0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Change in cash
	2,294,757
	
	246,885
	
	328,585
	


PetMed Express has generated an increasing dollar amount of cash from operations (CFO) from 2002 to 2004, but CFO has been significantly smaller than the net income the firm has produced each year.  Two noteworthy reasons for this are the constantly increasing Accounts Receivables and Inventory accounts.  PetMed Express has also used large amounts of accounts payable to support the increase in accounts receivable and inventory.  The firm did pay off accrued liabilities in 2002 and 2003.  This pattern is generally seen in companies unable to manage its working capital well, or in firms that are new or expanding.  Most likely PetMed Express falls into the latter category as pet care combined with Internet operations is a new industry.  The large increases in net income support this theory.  

PetMed Express has generated other cash inflows from sales of property and equipment and borrowings in 2002, and from proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants in 2003 and 2004.  The amount of cash generated from the sale of property and equipment in 2002 is surprising for a new or expanding company; however, it is possible the firm chose to sell its fixed assets in order to pay off its mortgage (see cash outflows) and is now using operating leases instead.  This could also explain why the firm no longer has capital lease obligations after 2002.

The firm has spent most of its excess cash on purchasing property and equipment.  In 2003 and 2004, PetMed Express has been paying off the loan taken out in 2002, without borrowing more.  This is a positive sign that the company is doing well.

The trend is upward for both net income and CFO.  Once PetMed Express is able to decrease, rather than increase accounts receivables and inventories, CFO should grow to a larger amount than the net income of the firm.  PetMed Express appears to be doing well.  

2.  
PetMed Express is successful in generating positive CFO and has so far been able to make payments on debt.  Unless the company has an unusually large amount of operating leases and other commitments, it appears they would be a good credit risk.

3.
Balance sheet information that would be useful includes:

· the proportion of short-term versus long-term debt,

· detail of types of debt outstanding (from notes), 

· amounts of debt due in the next five years (from notes), and

· operating lease and other commitments the firm may have (from notes).

CASE 4.2

CANDELA CORPORATION

	1.
	Candela Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows Summary Analysis

For the Years Ended July 3, 2004, June 28, 2003, and June 29, 2002



	
	2004
	%
	2003
	%
	2002
	%

	Inflows:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash from operations
	1,132
	19
	11,655
	65
	0
	0

	Proceeds from issuance of common stock
	4,707
	78
	4,620
	26
	394
	30

	Net borrowings on line of credit
	0
	0
	0
	0
	50
	4

	Effect of exchange rate changes
	172
	3
	1,552
	9
	890
	66

	     Total Inflows
	6,011
	100.0
	17,827
	100.0
	1,334
	100.0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Outflows:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash used in operations
	0
	0
	0
	0
	7,071
	52

	Purchases of property, plant and equipment
	685
	100
	1,227
	22
	1,058
	8

	Repurchases of treasury stock
	0
	0
	0
	0
	5,215
	38

	Principal payments of long-term debt 
	0
	0
	3,330
	59
	370
	2

	Net repayments on line of credit
	0
	0
	1,114
	19
	0
	0

	     Total Outflows
	685
	100.0
	5,671
	100.0
	13,714
	100.0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Change in cash
	5,326
	
	12,156
	
	(12,380)
	



Candela Corporation has volatile cash flow from operating activities (CFO) over the three years from 2002 to 2004.  The firm experienced a net loss in 2002, but has since recorded net profits in 2003 and 2004.  CFO was negative and much worse than the net loss in 2002.  In 2003, CFO was positive and greater than net income, but in 2004, CFO took a plunge, though still positive, was much less than net income.

Accounts receivable grew each year and this has reduced CFO especially in 2002 and 2004.  With the exception of 2003 inventories have been increasing, also causing a reduction in CFO.  The increases in accounts receivable and inventories could be due to an expansion or poor management of assets.  The firm has reduced accounts payable all years despite the current asset increases.  In 2003, the income Tax Payable account increased causing CFO to be over $4 million higher than it otherwise would have been, but the impact in 2004 was a reduction in this account causing CFO to be less.  Other negative impacts to CFO in 2004 included increases to other current asset accounts and the tax effects of stock options being exercised.

Candela has generated cash from the issuance of common stock all three years; however, this source of cash should not be relied on for future cash inflows.  The firm needs to focus on increasing CFO.  Other than use of a line of credit in 2002, the firm has not used short-term or long-term debt.  Since Candela operates globally, foreign exchange rate effects have positively impacted the cash flows of the firm.  

Candela's only investments are purchases of property, plant and equipment, but the dollar amount of investment declined significantly in 2004.  Since the firm discontinued operations, this could be the reason for fewer capital expenditures.

No other cash was used in 2004, but the firm did repurchase a significant amount of treasury stock in 2002, and made payments on long-term debt and the line of credit in 2003.  It is good the firm has made payments on debt without borrowing more.  Further investigation is needed to determine if the repurchase of common stock was a good use of the company's funds.

Candela does not appear to have any liquidity problems, but could work on being more efficient in collecting its accounts receivable.  The buildup of inventories in 2004 should also be investigated further.

2.
The statement of cash flows is extremely useful in making credit decisions.  Although the statement of cash flows is prepared from the balance sheet and income statement, it presents information in a way that reveals how the firm is generating cash and how the cash is being used, over a period of time.  The volatility of CFO for Candela cannot be observed by looking at only the income statement or the balance sheet.  The reasons for this volatility can be determined fairly quickly by looking at the statement of cash flows.

Chapter 5

5.1
Six items should be considered when assessing the area of revenue:

· premature revenue recognition,

· use of the gross versus the net basis of recording revenue,

· vendor financing,

· charges to the allowance for doubtful accounts,

· price versus volume changes, and

· real versus nominal growth of sales.

5.2
Depending on which inventory valuation method a firm uses, determines the value of cost of goods sold on the income statement and ending inventory balances on the balance sheet.  If there is inflation or deflation of the products being valued, then cost of goods sold and ending inventory using FIFO or LIFO will be higher or lower depending on the direction of price changes.  This in turn will impact whether net income is higher or lower.  

If a firm uses the LIFO method of inventory valuation during inflationary times, it is possible to record paper profits if more inventory is sold than is purchased or manufactured.  Understanding the inventory valuation methods will allow the user of financial statements to understand what changes in these numbers are real versus which changes have occurred only on paper as a result of the choice of a particular method.

5.3
While writing down an asset's value results in lower net income in the period of the write-down, relative to the next accounting period, net income will be higher.  Companies that purposely write down assets, or write down more than is necessary, may be trying to show positive earnings growth in the following accounting period in hopes of impressing investors.

5.4
Restructuring charges could be either an operating or a nonoperating expense, depending on the circumstances.  If the restructuring charge is truly a one-time item that is not expected to recur, then it could be viewed as nonoperating.  Firms who record restructuring charges often are more than likely recording items that are ordinary operating expenses in the course of their business.

5.5
Purchasing treasury stock for investment purposes would be appropriate for firms that believe the market has undervalued their stock price.  Some firms also purchase their own common stock in order to reissue it for employee stock programs.  This is appropriate for preventing the dilution of the stock price for current investors.  It would be a poor decision to purchase treasury stock for the sole purpose of trying to boost earnings per share, especially if the firm does not have enough cash to cover daily operating needs and long-term needs such as purchasing property, plant and equipment and repaying debt.

5.6
Rather than viewing this as a one-time event, analysts should consider the implications of such a charge.  WorldCom was not a new company, and therefore, the firm should have been able to statistically estimate bad debt with a fair amount of accuracy.  The one-time charge in such a large amount should be a red flag that either the firm's accounting department is not competent, or that there is the possibility of manipulation of the reserve account, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.

5.7
The gross profit margin could increase as a result of selling price increases or decreases in the costs of obtaining inventories.  A third reason could be due to high fixed costs in the firm which do not increase or decrease with demand, such as depreciation of plant and equipment.  With a 20% sales growth rate, excess capacity could be used without a corresponding increase in cost of goods sold.  These would all be plausible reasons for the higher gross profit margin.  

If a firm had written down a significant amount of inventory in the prior year, the following year there would not be a corresponding write-down of inventory, and gross profit margin would look higher relative to the prior year's number.  This would be a quality issue that the analyst would want to take into consideration when analyzing a firm's financial statements.

5.8
Salaries and wages are generally not considered to be discretionary expenses; however, paying higher salaries than is the norm could be considered as partly discretionary.  It appears that Costco is choosing to pay higher salaries and offer better benefits to its employees than Wal-Mart.  By doing this, Costco appears to be operating more efficiently and effectively than Wal-Mart.  Employee turnover is quite a bit lower at Costco, and sales per square foot, profits per employee, and operating income growth are better at Costco.

5.9
Students will have a variety of answers to this question, but an example of a possible response follows:

Conflicts of interest can arise between what management wants investors and creditors to see and the economic reality of transactions even when the accounting rules are followed.  For example, firms may legally record leases as operating leases, whereby information about the obligations are revealed only in the notes, instead of directly on the balance sheet.  By negotiating lease agreements that meet the criteria for operating leases as prescribed by the FASB, management can make sure the obligation is not shown as a liability, similar to a capital lease.  

The timing of revenues and expenses can be planned so that the recording of the item occurs in one year as opposed to another year.  In a year in which net income is lower than expected, management could choose to sell assets in order to report gains on sale. While there is nothing wrong with completing the sales transaction per se, the intent of selling the asset when it can mask an otherwise poor year would be considered poor quality of financial reporting.  

5.10
There is no response presented here as a variety of firms could be chosen.

5.11
Since the SEC homepage changes as updates are made, students may find different items available each semester.  

5.12
The quality of financial reporting for Intel is good.  Intel has explained items well in its management discussion and analysis and the notes to the financial statements.  One questionable area that was discussed in Chapter 2 is whether the allowance for doubtful accounts may have been overestimated in years prior to 2004.  Intel does use off-balance-sheet financing and has a few potential liabilities, but these items are discussed as they should be, and given Intel's solid financial position, the firm has no reason to purposely try to hide information.

5.13
(a) I.
Sales
1.
Premature revenue recognition

According to Note 1, "Significant Accounting Policies and Restatements,"  Kodak records revenue correctly.  

2.
Gross vs. net basis

This item does not affect Kodak.

3.
Vendor financing

Information on vendor financing is given in Notes 1 and 12.  In Note 1, under "Revenue" it is explained that Kodak records revenue from customer financing arrangements.  In Note 12, it is revealed that Kodak has a maximum guarantee amount for customer financing of $128 million, with $71 million currently outstanding.

4.
Allowance for doubtful accounts

The following is an analysis of the relationship among sales, accounts receivable and the allowance for doubtful accounts for Kodak.

	(in millions)
	2004
	2003
	% change

	Sales
	$13,517
	$12,909
	4.7
	

	Accounts receivable, gross
	2,671
	2,439
	9.5
	

	Less:  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(127)
	(112)
	13.4
	

	Accounts receivable, net
	$2,544
	$2,327
	
	


The relationship between sales, accounts receivable and the allowance for doubtful accounts is normal.  As the percentage of sales has increased, accounts receivable and the allowance account have also increased.  The percentage of the allowance account relative to total accounts receivable seems reasonable at 4.8% and 4.6%, respectively, for 2004 and 2003.  Amounts actually written off are slightly less than the bad debt expense charged each year, except in 2003, when $70 million was written off and only $45 million was recorded as bad debt expense.  This could be the result of a correction of an overestimation in prior years.

5
Price vs. volume changes

Sales increased almost 4.7% from 2003 to 2004.  The overall increase was a result of a combination of factors affecting the four segments within Kodak.  The Digital & Film Imaging Systems segment sales decreased 1% due to pricing issues.  The Health segment sales increased 10% due to volume and acquisition increases and the effect of foreign exchange rates, but also included some price declines.  Commercial Imaging sales increased due to exchange rates as volume decreased.  Graphic Communications sales increased 109% due to acquisitions.

6.
Real vs. nominal growth

	Sales (in millions)
	2004
	2003
	% change

	As reported (nominal)
	$13,517
	$12,909
	4.7
	

	Adjusted (real)
	13,517
	13,152
	2.8
	


Using base period CPI (1982-1984 = 100)

	(2004 CPI/2003 CPI)
	x
	2003 sales
	=
	Adjusted sales

	(184.3/180.9)
	x
	12,909
	=
	13,152


Adjusting for inflation indicates that sales increased less than the nominal increase in sales.

II.
Cost of Goods Sold

7.
Cost-flow assumption for inventory

Kodak uses LIFO for most U.S. inventories and FIFO for the remainder of its inventories.  LIFO produces higher quality earnings, but FIFO produces an inventory value on the balance sheet closest to current cost.

8.
Base LIFO layer liquidation

LIFO liquidations in 2004 and 2003 reduced cost of goods sold and, therefore, increased profits by $69 million and $45 million, respectively.  The poor wording in the notes could cause the reader to miss that profits were increased on paper only.

9.
Fulfillment costs

This item does not affect Kodak.

10.
Loss recognition on write-down of inventories

According to Note 3, Kodak wrote down inventories in 2004 and 2003, of $100 million and $75 million, respectively.  The user needs to adjust earnings for future comparison purposes.

III.
Operating Expense

11.
Discretionary expenses

Kodak has the following discretionary expenses:

	(in millions)
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Advertising expense (from Note 1)
	$513
	$596
	$630

	Research and development
	854
	776
	757


Kodak has decreased advertising expenses every year.  There is no quality explanation provided in the management discussion and analysis for the decline in advertising except that the $83 million reduction in 2004 was in the Digital & Film Imaging Systems segment.  If the reduction was in the film area only this is probably a good place to cut costs, but if advertising is not being maintained or increasing for digital products, this could negatively impact future sales.  

Research and development (R&D) increased each year.  According to management the increase is a result of increased spending in the digital area as well as acquisition-related, while traditional R&D in film has been reduced.  The Health and Graphic Communications segments are the only areas that appear to have increased R&D spending.  Management only discusses the decreases in R&D in the traditional area for the Digital & Film Imaging Systems segment, not any increases related to the digital products.  The numbers for R&D cannot be reconciled from the segment discussion to the overall numbers.  This is poor quality of financial reporting.

12.
Depreciation

Kodak uses the straight-line method of depreciation which is generally of lower quality.  In addition, the firm uses lives up to 20 years for machinery and equipment.  Many firms depreciate equipment no more than 8 or 10 years, so 20 years seems to be an unusually long life.

13.
Asset impairment

Kodak reported no asset impairments in 2004.

14.
"Big bath" or restructuring charges

According to Note 16, Kodak is restructuring its business to move into the digital area.  It appears that the firm is committed at least through 2006 to continue the elimination of employee positions as well as buildings and equipment.  According to Chapter 1, Kodak has been "restructuring" since 1992.  While all of the eliminations are discussed at length, nowhere is it explained how Kodak plans to be successful in the digital area.  This is poor quality of reporting or an indication that management does not have a solid plan for the future.

15.
Reserves

In addition to the allowance for doubtful accounts and the restructuring charges discussed previously, Kodak has reserves for warranty costs and environmental remediation costs of $62 million and $153 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003.  (See Notes 11 and 12.)

16.
In-process research and development

Acquisitions in 2004 and 2003 resulted in a $15 million and $10 million charge for in-process R&D.  This amount has not been reported separately, but as part of the R&D expense overall.  This is poor quality of financial reporting.

17.
Pension accounting-interest rate assumption

Kodak recorded net pension expense of $3 million and $98 million for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans in 2004.  Kodak's U.S. pension plans are currently overfunded by $5 million, but the non-U.S. pension plans are underfunded by $777 million.  Kodak has maintained an assumed long-term rate of return on plan assets of 9.0%.  Since the actual returns on plan assets have been higher than the expected returns, the assumed rate is reasonable.  Of concern is the underfunded non-U.S. pension plans combined with the large amounts accrued for other postretirement benefits of $3,270 million.

IV.
Non-operating Revenue and Expense

18.
Gains (losses) from sale of assets

Gains from sales of assets were recorded in 2004, 2003, and 2002, in the amounts of $15, $13, and $24 million, respectively, according to Note 14.

19.
Interest income

Kodak does not specify amounts for interest income.  The company has an account titled "other income (charges)"  that includes investment income and interest on past-due accounts receivable and finance revenue on sales.  The amounts in these accounts are stable from year to year.  (See Note 14.)

20.
Equity income

Equity income is included in the "other income (charges)" category.  Equity losses were recorded in 2002 and 2003, but equity income of $30 million was recorded in 2004.

21.
Income taxes

Kodak's effective tax rate has been volatile (benefits of 186% and 82% in 2004 and 2003 and a rate of 15% in 2002) due largely to the effects of foreign tax rates that differ from U.S. tax rates.

Net deferred tax assets are shown for both 2004 and 2003.  Pensions and postretirement benefits have caused the largest amount of deferred tax assets.

22.
Unusual items

Kodak does not have this category on its income statement.

23.
Discontinued operations

Kodak has discontinued operations all three years from 2002 to 2004 and reported earnings, net of taxes.  Note 22 and the presentation of this information on the face of the income statement are confusing as the amounts cannot be reconciled between the two.  This is poor quality of financial reporting.

24.
Accounting changes

25.
Extraordinary items

Kodak does not have these items.

V.
Other issues

26.
Material changes in number of shares outstanding

The number of common shares outstanding declined from 2002 to 2003 due to the repurchase of 7,354,316 shares of treasury stock and the issuance of 2,357,794 shares to employees.  The result of these transactions would be an increase to the 2002 earnings per share number.  Since Kodak has a large amount of debt, the large purchase of common stock in amounts greater than needed for employee stock option plans is questionable.

27.
Operating earnings, a.k.a. core earnings, pro forma earnings or EBITDA

Kodak does not present operating earnings numbers other than those required by GAAP.

Quality of Financial Reporting -- The Balance Sheet

Kodak has included "Commitments and Contingencies" (Note 11) on the face of its balance sheet, but also has guarantees that should be considered when assessing the potential obligations of the firm.  These items are discussed in Note 12.  According to Notes 11 and 12, Kodak has commitments and potential obligations totaling $2,052 million not reported directly on the balance sheet.  These items are as follows (in millions):

· Operational commitments - $859

· Qualex - $113

· Letters of credit/surety bonds - $227

· Operating leases - $515

· Leasebacks - $40

· Guarantees - $298

Quality of Financial Reporting -- The Statement of Cash Flows

There are no apparent problems of quality of financial reporting revealed on the statement of cash flows.

(b)
A variety of answers is possible depending on the overall objective in adjusting net earnings.  The following is one of many possible solutions:

	(in millions)
	

	Net earnings as reported in 2004
	$556
	

	Adjustments
	
	

	
	b.  deduct base-LIFO layer liquidation
	(69
	)

	
	c.  add back loss recognized on write-down     of inventories
	100
	

	
	h.  deduct gain from sale of assets
	(15
	)

	
	j.  deduct equity income
	(30
	)

	
	m.  deduct gain from discontinued operations
	(475
	)

	
	$67
	


Case 5-1
Nortel Networks Corporation
1.
Nortel Networks Corporation has a risky capital structure.  Debt

makes up 73% of total assets with over half of the total debt longterm. The firm does not have retained earnings, but rather an accumulated deficit that increased from 2003 to 2004.

2.
Nortel has a large number of commitments and guarantees that make its capital structure even more risky.  Many of the guarantees that are disclosed cannot be estimated in regard to maximum potential liability.  While some of the disclosures relate to items that have been accrued on the balance sheet, many items are only revealed in the notes.  A list of these items follows:

Note 12 - Guarantees

Items a, e and f include potential liabilities that have not been estimated, nor is there a maximum potential liability that is known.  These liabilities include retained liabilities related to sales of businesses or discontinued operations such as tax, environmental, litigation and employment matters.  Nortel has also indemnified banks and creditors against losses and costs related to the use of loan proceeds. Indemnification agreements also exist to counterparties in certain investment banking agreements, the administration of capital trust accounts, employee benefit plans, indentures for public debt and asset sale agreements.  

Items c, d and e include maximum amounts that could be potential liabilities, but these amounts are not included on the balance sheet.  They are as follows (in millions):


a.
Lease agreements with certain lessors


$ 48


b.
Guaranteed debt of customers


  
     7


c.
Securitized receivables subject to repurchase
 266

Note 13 - Commitments

Nortel is committed to pay for certain items in the future, but again these items are not included directly on the balance sheet.  A list of these items follows (in millions):

a. 
Bid, performance related and other bonds
 
$  430


b.
Venture capital financing




      16


c.
Purchase commitments




 1,254


d.
Operating leases





    821


e.
Outsourcing contracts




    463


f.
Special charges





    499


g.
Reduction for sublease income



   (153)

The potential guarantees and commitments total to $3,651 million.  Adding this to the amount of debt already on the balance sheet means Nortel has possible obligations greater than 94% of the total assets of the firm.  According to Nortel, $751 million of these items will probably never have to be paid, but there is always some uncertainty.  Many of the commitments, however, are items that will have to be paid in the future.

3.
Nortel has offered extensive disclosures related to guarantees and commitments so overall the quality of financial reporting is good.  Having a summary table outlining items that must be paid versus items unlikely to be paid would be useful to financial statement users.  

Case 5-2
FindWhat.com, Inc.
The Checklist for Earnings Quality includes six items to consider under Part I, Sales.  The first five items are looked at using the information for FindWhat.com, Inc.

1.
Premature revenue recognition 

According to the disclosures on revenues, FindWhat.com records revenue at the correct point of recognition.  Despite the disclosures, there is some concern in this area due to the fact that the firm's internal controls related to revenue recognition were found to be deficient.  More information about this deficiency and the types of adjustments that were made would be useful information to the reader of the financial statements.  The quality of information presented is poor.

2.
Gross vs. net basis

Some of  FindWhat.com's revenues are recorded gross, while other revenues are recorded net.  Helpful information that would have improved the quality of this disclosure would be a breakdown of total revenues recorded gross versus net.

3.
Vendor financing

FindWhat.com does not indicate that they have any vendor financing agreements.

4.
Allowance for doubtful accounts

 The following calculations should be made to analyze the relationship among sales, accounts receivable and the allowance for doubtful accounts:

Allowance account as a percentage of accounts receivable (dollars in thousands):

	
	Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net receivables + Allowance
	percentage of

Receivables



	2004
	$3,095
$26,117 + $3,095


	10.59%

	2003
	$223
$5,051 + $223
	4.23%


	
	Change from

2003 to 2004

	Sales
	134.8%

	Total Accounts Receivable
	 453.9%

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	1287.9%


FindWhat.com is a new company that has had major acquisitions in 2004 that increased all numbers by large amounts.  The pattern of increases among the sales, accounts receivable and allowance accounts is normal.  The firm has estimated that they expect to have a much greater percentage of bad debts in the future as evidenced by the increase in the percentage of the allowance account from 4.23% to 10.59%.   The disclosures in this area explain that the large increase is a result of the merger with Espotting.  Espotting has more billable customers and, therefore, the potential for more bad debts than the key customers of FindWhat.com who prepay for its services. Looking at the Valuation and Qualifying Accounts schedule it appears that FindWhat.com has been conservative in its estimates.  Actual write-offs have been half of the amount charged as bad debt expense in 2002 and 2003 and even less than half in 2004.  Without a better history of the bad debt expense from the companies acquired in 2004, it is hard to be certain if FindWhat.com has overestimated this reserve account.  

The disclosures offered are good in that the company has spelled out calculations that they have considered such as the relationship of bad debt to revenues.  In addition, a "what-if" scenario has been detailed explaining the impact on net income if the firm has either underestimated or overestimated the allowance account.  

5.
Price vs. volume changes

The large increase in revenues is mainly a result of volume increases due to the acquisitions in 2004, but FindWhat.com's original businesses also experienced volume increases.  

Chapter 6

6.1

	Current Ratio
	725,000

475,000
	1.53 times



	
	
	

	Quick Ratio
	400,000

475,000
	0.84 times

	
	
	

	Average Collection Period
	275,000

1,500,000/365
	67 days

	
	
	

	Inventory Turnover
	1,200,000

325,000
	3.69 times

	
	
	

	Fixed Asset Turnover


	1,500,000
420,000
	3.57 times



	
	
	

	Total Asset Turnover


	1,500,000
1,145,000
	1.31 times



	
	
	

	Debt Ratio


	875,000
1,145,000
	76.4 %



	
	
	

	Times Interest Earned


	200,000
72,000
	2.78 times



	
	
	

	Gross Profit Margin


	300,000
1,500,000
	20.0 %



	
	
	

	Operating Profit Margin


	200,000
1,500,000
	13.3 %



	
	
	

	Net Profit Margin


	76,800
1,500,000
	5.1 %



	
	
	

	Return on Total Assets


	76,800
1,145,000
	6.7 %



	
	
	

	Return on Equity


	76,800
270,000
	28.4 %




The current position is deteriorating, as measured by the current and quick ratios, and is below the industry average. The average collection period has increased and is slightly longer than the industry average, indicating potential weakness in credit and/or collection policies.  The inventory turnover has slowed and is well below competitors' levels. Eleanor's Computers is apparently overstocked with inventory due to inventory management problems and/or sluggish sales. 

Capital asset efficiency is in good shape, as evidenced by an improving and above-average fixed asset turnover. The efficient management of fixed assets approximately offsets the poor inventory turnover, and the total asset turnover is only slightly weaker than the industry.

The inventory has apparently been financed with debt, resulting in an increasing debt ratio, which is well above industry standards.  A combination of too much debt and low profit is producing difficulty in covering interest payments, shown by times interest earned.

The gross profit margin has slipped due to lack of cost controls for products sold, the need to sell products at discounts, or both.  The operating profit margin, however, reflects good control of operating expense. The overall return, as measured by the net profit margin, has fallen because of the combination of cost/pricing policies and high interest charges.

The return on investment, which has declined and is below the industry average, reflects decreasing profitability and the overstocking of inventory.  Return on equity is above the industry average and is trending upward.  Although the high debt ratio improves the return on equity, it also increases risk.  The increased use of financial leverage has more than offset the decrease in profitability:

	Net Profit

Margin
	x
	Total Asset

Turnover
	=


	Return on

Investment

	
	
	
	
	

	5.12
	x
	1.31
	=
	6.71

	
	
	
	
	

	Return on

Investment

(Assets/Equity)
	x
	Financial

Leverage
	=
	Return on

Equity

	
	
	
	
	

	6.71
	x
	4.24
	=
	28.44


6.2
Luna's current ratio has increased and is above the industry average, the average collection period has shortened and is less than the industry average, and the inventory turnover ratio has improved; the ratios indicate that Luna has no obvious problems with liquidity or the management of inventory and receivables.  Both the total asset turnover and fixed asset turnover ratios have declined, however, and are below the industry.  Problems with asset utilization are apparently caused by the management of capital assets.  Luna's expansion of capital assets has been more rapid than sales growth, given the declining ratio; the firm may be underutilizing its plant and equipment or may not yet be benefiting from asset growth.  Luna's debt ratio is stable and below the industry, while interest coverage is above industry; the declining fixed charge coverage implies that lease payments for Luna are excessive.  The decreasing net profit margin is apparently attributable to escalating operating costs rather than cost of goods sold, and the operating expenses are traceable to costs associated with the capital asset expansion and lease payments.  These problems have adversely affected the overall returns.

6.3

	
	(a)   FIFO
	(b)   LIFO

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gross profit margin
	53.3
	3
	%
	25.8
	3
	%

	Operating profit margin
	33.3
	3
	%
	5.8
	3
	%

	Net profit margin
	19.9
	3
	%
	2.0
	6
	%

	Current ratio
	1.6
	1
	
	1.1
	0
	

	Quick ratio
	0.7
	7
	
	0.7
	7
	


(c)
The ratios calculated using FIFO give the appearance that Rare Metals, Inc., is doing well, while the ratios calculated using LIFO give the opposite effect.  Based on the cost of goods sold (COGS) and ending inventory amounts, prices of the metal have been increasing.  The first goods purchased, which are the lower priced items, are included in COGS under FIFO.  Using LIFO, however, a better match is made with current cost and revenues and a more realistic picture of profitability is illustrated.  The company will most likely have to replace goods sold at the higher price in the future.  The difference in profit margins has resulted from a “paper” profit recorded under the FIFO method.

Ending inventory is undervalued when LIFO is used during inflation.  The FIFO valuation is a better reflection of the current market price of Rare Metals, Inc.’s inventory.  As a result the current ratio of 1.61 is a more accurate representation than 1.10.  The quick ratios are identical because inventory has been eliminated from the calculation, and inventory is the only difference in the numbers being compared.

(d)
Yes, cash flow from operating activities will differ due to the difference in taxes paid.   Assuming that the inventory method is the only cause of differences in amounts on the income statement, the amount of tax expense is greater when FIFO rather than LIFO is used.  Although tax expense may not be identical to cash paid for taxes, if in this case it is assumed that taxable income and earnings before taxes are the same, Rare Metals, Inc., would have paid $289 million more in taxes if they chose the FIFO method instead of the LIFO method.  While profit margins would be higher using FIFO, cash flow from operations would be higher using LIFO.  It is important to note that it is cash, not profit or earnings, that must be used to pay the bills!

6.4

(a)
Canon is more liquid than Eastman Kodak (Kodak).  Canon’s current and quick ratios are both above one and the cash-flow liquidity ratio is close to one, indicating the company should be able to pay current liabilities as they come due.  Kodak’s liquidity ratios are all below one.  It appears that Kodak must find external funding in the short-term to be able to pay current liabilities.  Canon generated more than 2.5 times the cash from operations in 2000 compared to Kodak.

Total asset turnover is the same for both firms with Kodak showing better inventory efficiency than Canon, but Canon is managing accounts receivable and fixed assets better than Kodak.

Kodak is highly leveraged compared to Canon.  This is not surprising given the differences seen in the liquidity area between the two firms.  The cash flow adequacy ratio is over one for Canon, which means the firm has no trouble covering capital expenditures, debt repayment and dividends with cash from operations.  Kodak is only covering $0.40 on every dollar of these same items with cash generated from its operations.

Kodak generates higher operating and net profits than Canon, and therefore has higher return on assets and equity ratios.  The return on equity ratio is extremely high due to the fact that Kodak uses a significant amount of debt (76%) and is generating sufficient returns to cover the cost of the debt.  Canon, while not as profitable, is translating its profits into cash much better than Kodak.

	(b)
	Kodak
	Canon

	Stock Price

EPS
	$39

$4.62
	$34

$1.16

	
	
	

	PE Ratio
	8.4
	29.3


The PE ratio indicates the value being placed by the stock market on a company’s earnings.  A higher value is being placed on Canon compared to the value placed on Kodak.  Investors may be placing a higher value on Canon because they understand the importance of cash flow from operations and view it as a better measure than accrual-based profits.

	6.5
	Current
	Quick
	Net Wk. Capital
	Debt

	(a)
	D
	N
	N
	I

	(b)
	N
	N
	N
	N

	(c)
	I
	I
	I
	D

	(d)
	D
	D
	D
	N

	(e)
	D
	N
	D
	I

	(f)
	N
	N
	N
	N

	(g)
	I
	I
	I
	I

	(h)
	I
	I
	I
	D

	(i)
	N
	N
	N
	D

	(j)
	N
	D
	N
	N

	(k)
	D
	D
	N
	I

	(l)
	I
	N
	N
	D


The instructor might want to discuss why a firm would make a specific transaction at the end of the period to affect certain ratios.  For example, consider item (l). If the objective is to increase the current ratio and decrease the debt ratio, perhaps to meet requirements in a loan covenant, the firm could pay cash to a supplier to reduce payables at the end of the accounting period.

6.6

	(a)
	Debt
	
	Equity
	

	Debt  Ratio*
	40+10
90+10
	= 50%
	40
90+10
	= 40%

	
	
	
	
	

	Times Interest Earned*
	18
4.8+1.5
	= 2.86 x
	18
4.8
	= 3.75x

	
	
	
	
	

	Operating Profit
	18,000,000
	
	18,000,000
	

	Interest Expense
	  6,300,000
	
	  4,800,000
	

	Earnings before tax
	11,700,000
	
	13,200,000
	

	Income tax exp. (40%)
	  4,680,000
	
	  5,280,000
	

	Net Income
	  7,020,000
	
	  7,920,000
	

	Shares Outstanding
	800,000
	
	1,000,000
	

	Earnings Per Share
	$8.78
	
	$7.92
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Return on Equity
	7,020
50,000
	= 14.04%
	7,920
60,000
	= 13.20%

	
	
	
	
	

	Return on Assets (adjusted)
	7,020+6,300(1-0.4)

100,000
	= 10.80
	7,920+4,800(1-0.4)
100,000
	= 10.80

	
	
	
	
	

	Financial Leverage Index
	14.04
10.80
	= 1.3
	13.20
10.80
	= 1.2


*Numbers are in millions

(b)
Use of debt would increase the debt ratios from 44% to 50%, while equity financing would reduce the debt ratio to 40%.  Interest coverage would decline from 3.1 times to 2.86 times if debt is employed; times interest earned would increase to 3.75 times with stock financing.  Earnings per share would be higher with the debt financing.  The financial leverage index is greater than 1, indicating the successful use of financial leverage under either alternative, but is higher with debt financing.

The Board would want to consider each of these ratios and other factors as well.  The additional risk resulting from adding debt would likely exert downward pressure on the price to earning ratio and thus could result in a decreased share price.  The Board would want to review the reasonableness of the projection for operating profit, including the stability and predictability of the firm's earnings stream in the past.  Other factors would include the marketability of stock relative to the current and future availability of credit; interest rate expectations; the effect of each alternative on the cost of capital; and the amount and timing of planned future expansions.

6.7
Short-term liquidity at Amazon.com is good and improving from 2003 to 2004.  The current and quick ratios are both above one to one, as is the cash flow liquidity ratio.  The firm's accounts receivable collection period has increased by two days but is still a very low 11 days.  Days inventory held has also increased by six days and is now at 33 days.  Amazon.com is taking four days longer to pay their accounts payable.  As long as Amazon.com is paying its suppliers in a timely manner, the 79 days payable outstanding is allowing the firm to collect its cash from customers before it pays its suppliers.  This is good cash management and causes the negative cash conversion cycle.  

Fixed asset turnover has improved which means the level of sales growth is more than any increases in fixed assets.  Despite the increase in fixed asset turnover, total asset turnover has declined.  If the magnitude of accounts receivable and inventories is greater than fixed assets, the decline in total asset turnover can be explained by the decline in accounts receivable and inventory turnovers.  It is also possible that Amazon.com has large amounts of cash, investments and goodwill which could cause the total asset turnover to be lower.

Overall Amazon.com has good liquidity and operating efficiency.

6.8
AMC has a risky capital structure with over 80% debt, most of which is longterm.  The interest (accrual based and cash based) and fixed charge coverage ratios are low, but have improved from 2003 to 2004.  This was probably a result of the increase in operating profits, which may have resulted in an increase in cash flow from operations.  Cash flow adequacy has declined.  Since the other cash flow ratios have increased, capital expenditures, debt repayments or dividends paid have increased. 

The profitability of AMC is improving but net profit margin is negative.  

Gross and operating profit margins have both improved due to better cost control or an increase in prices.  The reason why operating profits are positive and net profits are negative is probably due to the large amount of debt and, therefore, higher interest expense.  The accrual-based return ratios are negative as a result of the net losses, but cash generated from operations must be improving based on the cash flow margin and the cash return on assets.  

AMC needs to work on reducing debt and interest expense in order to improve profitability.  Long-term solvency at this point is not a concern, but the capital structure is risky and must be watched.  

6.9
Writers of the 2004 annual report will probably want to emphasize rebounding in 2004 from an abnormal year in 2003.  They will want to point out reasons for the improvement in 2004, showing how the company is building for continued success.  The "Summary of Analysis" section at the end of Chapter 5 provides an overview of the positive aspects of R.E.C., Inc.'s performance and outlook.  The annual report will focus on strengths:  sales growth, well-managed expansion, increased profit, positive cash flow, effective cost controls, improvement in receivables and inventory management, overall favorable outlook for economy, industry and geographic location.  There will be some need to explain the identified problems, such as the negative cash flow in 2003 and how the firm has recovered, which is actually a major plus.

6.10
There is no solution presented for this problem since students will choose different industries.  Having students share what they have learned from their research can lead to interesting discussions.

6.11  
There is no solution presented for this problem since students will choose different industries.  Having students share what they have learned from their research can lead to interesting discussions.

6.12

	(a) and (b)
	2004
	2003
	2002
	Ind.

Avg.*

	Short-term liquidity
	
	
	
	

	Current ratio
	3.00
	3.33
	
	1.8

	Quick ratio
	2.68
	2.96
	
	1.1

	Cash flow liquidity ratio
	3.78
	4.02
	
	

	Average collection period
	32 days
	36 days
	
	51 days

	Days inventory held
	67 days
	71 days
	
	74 days

	Days payable outstanding
	49 days
	47 days
	
	40 days

	Cash conversion cycle
	50 days
	60 days
	
	85 days

	Operating efficiency
	
	
	
	

	Accounts receivable turnover
	11.41
	10.18
	
	7.2

	Inventory turnover
	5.52
	5.18
	
	4.9

	Accounts payable turnover
	7.44
	7.86
	
	9.2

	Fixed asset turnover
	2.17
	1.81
	
	5.9

	Total asset turnover
	0.71
	0.64
	
	1.0

	Leverage
	
	
	
	

	Debt ratio
	19.87%
	19.72%
	
	45.3%

	Long-term debt to total capitalization
	1.79%
	2.41%
	
	

	Debt to equity
	0.25
	0.25
	
	0.9

	Financial leverage index
	1.24
	1.24
	
	

	Times interest earned
	203 times
	122 times
	52 times
	2.8 times

	Cash interest coverage
	299 times
	223 times
	147 times
	

	Fixed charge coverage
	55 times
	37 times
	19 times
	

	Cash flow adequacy
	2.68 times
	2.58 times
	1.89 times
	

	Profitability
	
	
	
	

	Gross profit margin
	57.72%
	56.71%
	49.76%
	29.0%

	Operating profit margin
	29.61%
	24.99%
	16.37%
	2.8%

	Net profit margin
	21.97%
	18.72%
	11.65%
	

	Cash flow margin
	38.35%
	38.20%
	34.11%
	

	Return on total assets
	15.61%
	11.97%
	
	

	Return on equity
	19.48%
	14.91%
	
	

	Cash return on assets
	27.25%
	24.43%
	
	


	
	2004
	2003
	2002
	Ind.

Avg.

	Market measures
	
	
	
	

	Earnings per share
	$1.17
	$0.86
	$0.47
	

	PE ratio
	
	
	
	

	   High (4th quarter)
	21.20
	39.67
	
	

	   Low (4th quarter)
	16.82
	32.00
	
	

	Dividend payout rate
	13.68%
	9.30%
	
	

	Dividend yield
	
	
	
	

	   High (annual)
	.47%
	.23%
	
	

	   Low (annual)
	.81%
	.53%
	
	


* Industry average is from The Risk Management Association, Annual Statement Studies, 2004-2005; SIC #3674

(c)
As requested, an evaluation of Intel has been completed.  The following report includes an evaluation of short-term liquidity, capital structure and long-term solvency, operating efficiency and profitability, market measures and quality of financial reporting issues.  Strengths and weaknesses are identified and the investment potential and creditworthiness of the firm are assessed.

Short-term Liquidity

Intel's short-term liquidity is impressive.  The current and quick ratios are both decreasing due to current liabilities increasing faster than current assets.  The cash-flow liquidity ratio declined due to the increasing current liabilities. Cash from operations is increasing every year due to increases in net income.  Intel has a significant amount of cash and short-term investments and, therefore, should not have problems paying debt as it comes due.  In fact, cash and short-term investments are greater than the total liabilities of Intel.  This company has no problem generating cash from operations as evidenced by the statement of cash flows.

Accounts receivable is stable. The collection period has improved by four days and is well below the industry average.  One concern is that three customers account for 43% of accounts receivable and a default by any one would be significant to the company.  

Days inventory held has declined and is below the industry average.  It is noteworthy that Intel has only 5% of total assets tied up in inventories.  This is good because of the rapid obsolescence of products in the high technology industry.

Days payable outstanding has increased indicating Intel is paying suppliers slower; however, Intel takes longer to pay than the competition. The cash conversion cycle has decreased ten days.  The improved collection period  and days inventory is held combined with the slower payment of accounts payable is the reason for the decline.

Overall the short-term liquidity of Intel is excellent.  Compared to the industry Intel operates within, its ratios and account balances are better than their competitors.  Intel has higher amounts of cash and investments than the competition.

Operating Efficiency

As discussed under short-term liquidity, Intel has improved the turnover of accounts receivable and inventory and is also paying accounts payable slower.

The fixed and total asset turnover ratios for Intel are low compared to the competition. Intel invests heavily in fixed assets to increase capacity, while keeping inventory levels low, a strategy opposite its competition.  The increase in both turnover ratios has been caused by an increase in sales without a comparable increase in assets.  

Capital Structure and Long-term Solvency

Intel has little debt, especially when compared to its competition.  Most of the company's debt is short-term and all debt can be covered with the current levels of cash and short-term investments.  Liabilities make up less than 20% of total assets, making Intel's capital structure low risk.

Intel is generating profits and a large amount of cash from operations, allowing the company to cover interest and lease payments easily.  Cash flow adequacy is well over one, meaning Intel generates a lot of excess cash each year.  The financial leverage index indicates Intel is using debt successfully in both 2004 and 2003.  Should Intel need to borrow in the future, the large equity cushion will allow them to obtain financing readily.  

Profitability

Revenues for Intel have been increasing at a steady rate over the three-year period from 2002 to 2004.  Operating expenses have not increased proportionately with the revenue increases, resulting in increased profitability for the company.  Revenue increases are mainly a result of increased volume of sales.  

The gross profit margin has increased significantly over the three-year period.  The Management Discussion and Analysis explains why this occurred.   Intel was able to lower costs in the Architecture Business, while at the same time increasing sales.  The Intel Communications Group negatively impacted the gross profit margin due to the write-down of inventory due to lower replacement costs as well as higher unit costs for flash memory products.

Operating profit has increased each year, a result of the gross profit improvements as well as changes in other operating expenses.  On a percentage basis, operating expenses have declined relative to sales as a result of solid sales growth without a corresponding increase in costs.  Research and development dollars have increased each year, and this is a good sign since it is important for Intel to continually develop new and innovative products.  Marketing, general and administrative expenses declined in dollars in 2003, but have increased in 2004.  Intel did not reduce advertising dollars, but rather was able to cut costs in 2003 as a result of reduced headcount as they refocused on core strategic areas.  In 2003 Intel recorded what appears to be a one-time impairment charge for goodwill related to the Wireless Communications and Computing Group.  This division has not performed as well as expected.

In all three years Intel incurred losses on its equity securities.  These losses are most likely attributed to a weak economy and stock market over the past three years.  The good news is that the losses were much less in 2004 compared to 2003 and 2002.

Interest income and other, net, increased in 2004, due to higher investment balances and higher interest rates.  

Intel's effective tax rate is relatively low compared to the statutory rate of 35%.  The firm appears to be benefiting from tax losses due to divestitures and export sales benefits.

Net profits are healthy and increasing.   If costs are managed well, profits should continue to trend upward.  To continue to be successful, Intel must maintain good control of expenses, while continuing to develop cutting edge products. 
Market Measures

Earnings per share has increased as sales and profits have risen. The PE ratio is high in 2003, but has dropped in 2004.  The marketplace is not placing as high a value on Intel.   This could be due to the riskiness of the high technology industry, as Intel's financial status is excellent.  The dividend yield would indicate that investors will have their greatest return in stock appreciation as opposed to dividends.  Intel has chosen to double its dividends in 2004 as well as repurchase a significant amount of common stock.

Quality of Financial Reporting
Intel has disclosed key information as required in their annual report and Form 10-K.  The only questionable item is whether Intel in prior years had overstated its allowance for doubtful accounts, a reserve account that can be manipulated.  This account appears appropriate in 2004.  Overall, the quality of financial reporting is good. 

Strengths

Strong cash flow from operations

Solid short-term liquidity

Low debt levels

Better receivables and inventory management

Increasing profits

Increasing cash from operations

Weaknesses

Reliance on three customers

Riskiness of high technology industry

Investment potential

Intel's stock prices have dropped due to the overall economic downturn.  Since revenues and profits are increasing Intel's stock may be a good value at this time.  

Creditworthiness

Intel's solid short-term and long-term solvency combined with strong cash flow from operations and a low debt ratio make this company a good credit risk.

6.13

	Eastman Kodak     (EK / NYSE)

	Summary of Financial Statement Ratios

	
	Results for the Years Ending December 31

	
	2004
	2003
	2002

	Liquidity Ratios:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Current ratio
	1.13
	times
	1.04
	times
	 
	 

	Quick ratio
	0.90
	times
	0.83
	times
	 
	 

	Cash flow liquidity
	0.48
	times
	0.54
	times
	 
	 

	Average collection period
	69
	days
	66
	days
	 
	 

	Days inventory held
	45
	days
	46
	days
	 
	 

	Days payable outstanding
	34
	days
	35
	days
	 
	 

	Net trade cycle
	80
	days
	77
	days
	 
	 

	Activity Ratios:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accounts receivable turnover
	5.31
	times
	5.55
	times
	 
	 

	Inventory turnover
	8.25
	times
	8.10
	times
	 
	 

	Payables turnover
	11.00
	times
	10.50
	times
	 
	 

	Fixed asset turnover
	3.00
	times
	2.56
	times
	 
	 

	Total asset turnover
	0.92
	times
	0.87
	times
	 
	 

	Leverage Ratios:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt ratio
	74.14
	%
	78.14
	%
	 
	 

	Long-term debt to total      

  capitalization
	32.70
	%
	41.50
	%
	 
	 

	Debt to equity
	2.87
	times
	3.58
	times
	 
	 

	Times interest earned
	-0.52
	times
	2.05
	times
	6.75
	times

	Cash interest coverage
	8.21
	times
	12.92
	times
	14.70
	times

	Fixed charge coverage
	0.22
	times
	1.51
	times
	4.02
	times

	Cash flow adequacy
	0.84
	times
	1.15
	times
	0.97
	times

	Profitability Ratios:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gross profit margin
	29.36
	%
	32.34
	%
	36.07
	%

	Operating profit margin
	-0.64
	%
	2.34
	%
	9.31
	%

	Net profit margin
	4.11
	%
	1.96
	%
	6.14
	%

	Cash flow margin
	8.48
	%
	12.14
	%
	17.28
	%

	Return on assets (ROA)
     or  Return on investment (ROI)
	3.77
	%
	1.70
	%
	 
	 

	Return on equity (ROE)
	14.59
	%
	7.80
	%
	 
	 

	Cash return on assets
	7.78
	%
	10.56
	%
	 
	 

	Market Ratios:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Earnings per share
	 $         0.28 
	
	 $         0.66 
	
	 $         2.61 
	

	Price-to-earnings
	115.18
	0
	38.89
	0
	13.43
	0

	Dividend payout 
	178.57
	%
	174.24
	%
	68.97
	%

	Dividend yield
	1.55
	%
	4.48
	%
	5.14
	%

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	NOTES:   If a ratio's numerator and/or denominator equals zero, no ratio is displayed.
	

	            "N/M" indicates a calculated ratio is not meaningful for analysis
	
	
	


Analysis of Eastman Kodak - 2004

Eastman Kodak (Kodak) is currently facing many challenges as the company tries to move out of its traditional area of business, film, and into the digital area and high technology industry.  The firm has been restructuring since 1992 and is still in the process of eliminating jobs and facilities.  The recent change in management to a CEO that has extensive experience from Hewlett-Packard may be positive for the firm.  The competition in the technology industry is probably far greater than Kodak has ever experienced in the film industry.  In recent years the firm has not had impressive financial results.  A discussion of the financial well-being of Kodak follows, as well as recommendations for investors and creditors.

Short-term Liquidity
Kodak's short-term liquidity is stable.  The current and quick ratios seem adequate and have improved slightly from 2003 to 2004.  This is a result of an increase in accounts receivable, while short-term debt and the current portion of long-term debt have fallen.  The cash flow liquidity ratio is decreasing slightly due to the drop in cash from operations (CFO) which is faster than the drop in the current liabilities.

The average collection period has increased three days and is now a fairly long 69 days.  This should be monitored.  Inventory days held and the days payable outstanding are stable.  The cash conversion cycle is higher by three days due to the collection period.  Kodak pays its suppliers quicker than they collect from its customers.  It would be in Kodak's best interest to review this area and try to minimize the cash conversion cycle, by collecting receivables quicker and perhaps paying suppliers slower.

The decreasing CFO is mainly the result of decreasing profits, so Kodak needs to increase profits in order to increase cash flow.  

Operating Efficiency
The accounts receivable, inventory and payables turnovers were discussed under short-term liquidity.  Fixed and total asset turnovers have increased, which is good.  This is a result of slightly increasing sales combined with the larger reduction in fixed assets due to downsizing.  Of concern is whether Kodak has cut too many employees and facilities.

Capital Structure

Kodak's debt structure is risky, but improving.  The firm now has 74% debt in 2004, compared to 78% debt in 2003.  Long-term debt has declined the most, from 41.5% to 32.7%.  

Times interest earned and fixed charge coverage are on a downward trend due to the drop in operating profits each year.  In 2004, Kodak generated an operating loss.  Interest expense dropped in 2003, but increased again in 2004, despite the decline in overall debt.  This was a result of increased interest rates as the company replaced commercial paper debt with Senior Notes.  Cash interest coverage is still healthy, but declining due to the drop in CFO as discussed earlier.  

Cash flow adequacy was above one in 2003, but below one in 2004 and 2002.  Kodak has made a few changes to improve this ratio such as cutting dividends and stopping the repurchase program for common stock.  The firm must still figure out how to improve profitability in order to make further improvements in this ratio.

Profitability
Kodak has generated sales growth at an increasing rate each year, but it is not all that impressive.  Worse is that Kodak's operating costs grew at 15.3% when sales only grew 2.9% from 2002 to 2003.  Costs were better controlled in 2004, but not enough to cover the increase that occurred in cost of goods sold, therefore leading to an operating loss.  Sales growth is mainly a result of acquisitions and the effect of foreign exchange rates.  In fact, Kodak's largest segment, Digital & Film Imaging Systems, experienced a 1% decrease in sales.

Gross profit margin is declining significantly every year and is now below 30%.  This is the result of price declines in traditional film products.  Kodak has not been able to replace its high-margin film products with comparable margin digital products.  One positive area is the increase in gross profit margin in the Graphic Communications segment, a result of acquisitions in 2004.

Kodak generated an operating loss in 2004.  Operating profit margin in 2003 decreased as a result of the declining gross profit margin combined with an increase in selling, general and administrative (SGA) expenses and restructuring costs.  In 2004, Kodak reduced SGA expenses, but research and development (R&D) and restructuring costs increased.  SGA expenses increased slightly in 2003 due to asset impairments and legal settlements, but these items declined in 2004.  Employee positions were eliminated in 2004 and advertising was reduced.  As Kodak moves into the digital area it seems that more, rather than less, funding should be used to advertise new products.  

R&D has been increased each year, which is usually a good sign that a firm is trying to innovate; however, careful reading of the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) reveals that some of the increase is a result of writing off purchased in-process R&D in prior years compared to the more recent year.  Most companies record this item as a separate line on their income statements, but Kodak has hidden this information.  

Restructuring costs have increased each year as Kodak tries to transition from film to digital products.  The company is laying off large numbers of employees and selling off plant and equipment.  The information Kodak offers in its MDA regarding restructuring costs focuses more on the downsizing of the firm without much said about how they intend to move successfully into the digital area.

Net profit margin is positive all years, despite the 2004 operating loss.  The other income in 2004 is a result of legal settlements in Kodak's favor, a one-time, nonrecurring item.  Interest expense has declined and then increased over the three years as interest rates declined and then increased.  The tax benefits in 2004 and 2003, and the low 14.9% tax rate in 2002, are a result of earnings in lower-taxed jurisdictions outside of the United States combined with losses incurred in higher-taxed jurisdictions.  Finally, Kodak has benefited from a one-time gain from discontinued operations.

Kodak has many challenges to overcome.  Its strategy so far, has not been beneficial in terms of profitability.

Market Measures

Due to the decreasing profits, earnings per share has also decreased.  The price to earnings ratio has skyrocketed as investors have bid up the stock price despite the dropping profits.  Investors may believe that the company can turn around its poor profitability in the near future.  Dividends are decreasing.  The payout ratio is misleading as a result of the much lower earnings per share.  

Quality of Financial Reporting

The following examples illustrate why Kodak's presentation is not always clear, and therefore, of poor quality:

(a)  The base LIFO layer liquidation caused paper profits, but the explanation in the notes discusses the “reduction in cost of goods sold.”

(b)  The firm has written off huge amounts of inventory and this will impact comparability between profit numbers year to year.

(c)  Mixing in-process R&D with the recurring amounts of R&D is misleading.

(d)  Better explanations of the changes in advertising and R&D by segment would improve the quality of financial reporting.

(e)  Depreciation of equipment in high technology firms is usually based on short lives, yet Kodak has equipment lives of up to 20 years.

(f)  Taking 15 years to restructure seems excessive and indicative of a lack of a solid transition plan.

(g)  Discontinued operations information is not disclosed well between earnings and possible gains from dispositions.  The numbers in Note 22 do not reconcile with the income statement amounts.

(h)  In 2002, Kodak repurchased more treasury stock than needed for employee stock plans.

(i)  A more comparable 2004 earnings number, adjusted for one-time, nonrecurring items, is $67 million compared to the reported $556 million, an 88% decrease.

Strengths





Weaknesses

Stable short-term liquidity 

Average collection period

Fixed asset turnover increasing

  increasing

Long-term debt decreasing


Risky debt structure

Transition from film to digital area

Poor coverage ratios

New management




Declining CFO

Declining profit margins

Constant restructuring

Highly competitive industry

Investment Potential

Kodak's stock price has been improving in 2004. Investing now depends on whether one believes current management can effectively move Kodak into the digital area successfully.  After 12 years of restructuring the firm is still struggling, but is making some positive changes to its financial position.  Profitability is poor and this is key to turning the firm around.  Increasing profitability would lead to increased CFO and the firm could pay down debt to a more acceptable level.  Investing in Kodak in the short-term is not recommended.  There is potential stock price growth in the long-term, however, if the new management succeeds.  This stock is not for risk averse investors.

Creditworthiness
Kodak's already high debt ratio combined with its off-balance-sheet commitments does not make it a good credit risk.  Kodak needs to increase profits and CFO before taking on more debt.

CASE 6.1

ACTION PERFORMANCE COMPANIES, INC.

1.
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Stock Ticker Symbol:  ATN

U.S. Stock Exchange:  NYSE Fixed

12/31/2000

Year End Dates for Financial Statements:  9/30/2004 9/30/2003 9/30/2002

Financial Reports Rounded to :  Thousands

Supplemental Ratio Requirements:

2004 2003 2002

Rent expense (in thousands): 3,900 $                        4,100 $                        2,100 $                       
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End of year stock price (adjusted for splits ): 10.13 $                        24.94 $                        25.70 $                       
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Check Figures:

2004 2003

Balance Sheet                         Current Assets:  140,942 $                    175,506 $                   

Total Assets: 354,283 $                    372,688 $                   

Current Liabilities: 53,988 $                      61,913 $                     

Total Stockholders' Equity: 260,627 $                    261,593 $                   

2002

Income Statement                        Gross Profit:  96,371 $                      123,579 $                    155,748 $                   

Operating Profit: 1,856 $                        37,565 $                      76,081 $                     

Net Profit: 540 $                           24,227 $                      44,947 $                     

Cash Flow               Net Flows from Operations: 19,813 $                      39,426 $                      52,725 $                     

Net Flows from Investing Activity: (32,383) $                     (48,854) $                     (44,783) $                    

Net Flows from Financing Activity: (24,545) $                     (11,334) $                     (3,107) $                      

Action Performance Companies, Inc.

Please enter data on this sheet before entering financial statement information.

The 'Analysis ToolPak' add-in must be installed and active.
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ASSETS

    Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 12,580 $              49,462 $             

Short-term investments

  Total cash and short-term investments 12,580                 49,462                

Accounts receivable, net 51,769                 69,890                

Inventories, net 56,947                 43,232                

  Current deferred taxes 8,766                   5,291                  

Other current assets 10,880                 7,631                  

    Total current assets 140,942               175,506              

  Property, plant, and equipment 216,739               185,661              

  Less:  accumulated depreciation 151,861               122,710              

  Net property, plant, and equipment 64,878                 62,951                

Long-term investments

Goodwill, net 88,653                 87,448                

Other intangibles, net 56,614                 44,426                

Other deferred taxes

Other assets 3,196                   2,357                  

      Total assets

354,283 $            372,688 $           

LIABILITIES

    Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 28,778 $              36,734 $             

Short-term debt

Current portion of long-term debt 4,009                   567                     

Accrued liabilities 19,459                 21,456                

Income taxes payable 1,742                   3,156                  

Other current liabilities

  Total current liabilities 53,988                 61,913                

Long-term debt 11,882                 34,425                

Deferred income taxes payable 24,979                 10,890                

Other deferred liabilities

Other liabilities 2,807                   3,867                  

    Total liabilities 93,656                 111,095              

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock

Common stock, par value plus additional paid-in capital 158,615               157,486              

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 107,467               110,594              

Treasury stock (3,999)                  (3,999)                 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,456)                  (2,488)                 

Other stockholders' equity

    Total stockholders' equity 260,627               261,593              

      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

354,283 $            372,688 $           

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)

Annual Consolidated Balance Sheet

Amounts Rounded to : Thousands

Results as of  September 30
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ASSETS

    Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 3.6% 13.3%

Short-term investments 0.0% 0.0%

  Total cash and short-term investments 3.6% 13.3%

Accounts receivable, net 14.6% 18.8%

Inventories, net 16.1% 11.6%

  Current deferred taxes 2.5% 1.4%

Other current assets 3.1% 2.0%

    Total current assets 39.8% 47.1%

  Property, plant, and equipment 61.2% 49.8%

  Less:  accumulated depreciation 42.9% 32.9%

  Net property, plant, and equipment 18.3% 16.9%

Long-term investments 0.0% 0.0%

Goodwill, net 25.0% 23.5%

Other intangibles, net 16.0% 11.9%

Other deferred taxes 0.0% 0.0%

Other assets 0.9% 0.6%

      Total assets

100.0% 100.0%

LIABILITIES

    Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8.1% 9.9%

Short-term debt 0.0% 0.0%

Current portion of long-term debt 1.1% 0.2%

Accrued liabilities 5.5% 5.8%

Income taxes payable 0.5% 0.8%

Other current liabilities 0.0% 0.0%

  Total current liabilities 15.2% 16.6%

Long-term debt 3.4% 9.2%

Deferred income taxes payable 7.1% 2.9%

Other deferred liabilities 0.0% 0.0%

Other liabilities 0.8% 1.0%

    Total liabilities 26.4% 29.8%

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock 0.0% 0.0%

Common stock, par value plus additional paid-in capital 44.8% 42.3%

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 30.3% 29.7%

Treasury stock -1.1% -1.1%

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) -0.4% -0.7%

Other stockholders' equity 0.0% 0.0%

    Total stockholders' equity 73.6% 70.2%

      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

100.0% 100.0%

Results as of  September 30

Summary percentages in italics  will not foot due to rounding

Annual Common Size Balance Sheet

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)
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Net sales 344,330 $            369,458 $            406,558 $           

Less: Cost of goods sold 247,959               245,879               250,810              

    Gross profit 96,371                 123,579               155,748              

  Sales, general and administrative 90,713                 82,598                 76,870                

Research and development

Restructuring, impairment, and amortization 3,802                   3,416                   2,797                  

Other operating expenses

  Total operating expenses 94,515                 86,014                 79,667                

    Operating profit (loss) 1,856                   37,565                 76,081                

Other income (expenses), net excluding interest expense 1,582                   2,246                   (499)                    

  Earnings (loss) before interest and taxes 3,438                   39,811                 75,582                

Interest expense 1,832                   2,085                   3,029                  

  Earnings (loss) before taxes 1,606                   37,726                 72,553                

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 1,066                   13,499                 27,606                

  Earnings (loss) after taxes 540                      24,227                 44,947                

Extraordinary items, net

Discontinued operations, net

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net

Other after-tax income (loss), net

    Net profit (loss) 540 $                   24,227 $              44,947 $             

Basic earnings per common share 0.03 $                  1.36 $                  2.56 $                 

Results for the Years Ending September 30

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)

Annual Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts Rounded to : Thousands      (except per share amounts)
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Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Less: Cost of goods sold 72.0% 66.6% 61.7%

    Gross profit 28.0% 33.4% 38.3%

Sales, general and administrative 26.3% 22.4% 18.9%

Research and development  (R&D) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Restructuring, impairment, and amortization 1.1% 0.9% 0.7%

Purchased in-process R&D 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Other operating expenses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

  Total operating expenses 27.4% 23.3% 19.6%

    Operating profit (loss)

0.5% 10.2% 18.7%

Other income (expenses), net excluding interest expense 0.5% 0.6% -0.1%

  Earnings (loss) before interest and taxes 1.0% 10.8% 18.6%

Interest expense 0.5% 0.6% 0.7%

  Earnings (loss) before taxes 0.5% 10.2% 17.8%

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 0.3% 3.7% 6.8%

  Earnings (loss) after taxes 0.2% 6.6% 11.1%

Extraordinary items, net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Discontinued operations, net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Other after-tax income (loss), net 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

    Net profit (loss) 0.2% 6.6% 11.1%

Effective tax rate 66.4% 35.8% 38.0%

Results for the Years Ending September 30

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)

Annual Common Size Income Statement

Summary percentages in italics  will not foot due to rounding
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Income (loss) from continuing operations 540 $                   24,227 $              44,947 $             

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:

  Restructuring charges

  Impairment charges

  Depreciation and amortization 30,184                 26,153                 23,722                

  (Gain) loss on sales of investments, acquisitions, and securities 322                      (34)                       1,361                  

  (Gain) loss on sales of property, plant, and equipment

  Increase (decrease) in provision for deferred income taxes (885)                     3,354                   (133)                    

  Other non-cash items, net (79)                       1,543                   4,840                  

  Changes in assets and liabilities:

    (Increase) decrease in receivables 18,456                 (1,865)                  (18,518)               

    (Increase) decrease in inventories (13,077)                (363)                     (4,522)                 

    (Increase) decrease in other current assets 921                      2,905                   1,169                  

    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 

       accrued liabilities, and income taxes payable

(14,296)                (12,209)                848                     

    Increase (decrease) in deferred liabilities

    Other assets and liabilities, net (2,273)                  (4,285)                  (989)                    

  Net cash provided by (used in ) operating activities 19,813                 39,426                 52,725                

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment

(24,940)                (33,366)                (25,800)               

Sales of property, plant, and equipment 84                        245                      261                     

Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments

Sales of marketable securities and short-term investments

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (8,142)                  (15,733)                (19,006)               

Other investing activities, net 615                      (238)                    

  Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (32,383)                (48,854)                (44,783)               

Cash flows from financing activities:

Short-term borrowings, net

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 11,700                 3,001                  

Payment of long-term borrowings (31,303)                (9,429)                  (6,397)                 

Proceeds from sales of common stock 330                      871                      6,618                  

Repurchase of common stock / treasury stock (2,024)                  (1,975)                 

Dividends to shareholders (5,272)                  (3,753)                  (1,353)                 

Other financing activities, net

  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (24,545)                (11,334)                (3,107)                 

Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net 233                      639                      236                     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents for period (36,882)                (20,123)                5,071                  

Cash and equivalents, beginning of period 49,462                 69,585                 64,514                

Cash and equivalents, end of period

12,580 $              49,462 $              69,585 $             

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:

  Interest 2,252 2,199                   2,705                  

  Income taxes (refunded) 5,070 11,420                 27,815                

Results for the Years Ending September 30

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)

Annual Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts Rounded to : Thousands
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Inflows $ $ $

Proceeds from operating activities 19,813                 60.4               39,426                 89.2               52,725                 88.1              

Sales of property, plant, and equipment 84                        0.3                 245                      0.6                 261                      0.4                

Sales of marketable securities and short-term investments -                           -                           -                          

Divestiture of acquisitions, net of cash acquired -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from other investing activities, net 615                      1.9                 -                           -                          

Proceeds from short-term borrowings, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 11,700                 35.7               3,001                   6.8                 -                          

Proceeds from sales of common stock 330                      1.0                 871                      2.0                 6,618                   11.1              

Proceeds from other financing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from discontinued operations -                           -                           -                          

Gains from effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net 233                      0.7                 639                      1.4                 236                      0.4                

Total Inflows 32,775 $              100.0 44,182 $              100.0 59,840 $              100.0

Outflows $ $ $

Losses from operating activities -                           -                           -                          

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment 24,940                 35.8               33,366                 51.9               25,800                 47.1              

Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments -                           -                           -                          

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 8,142                   11.7               15,733                 24.5               19,006                 34.7              

Losses from other investing activities, net -                           -                           238                     

0.4                

Payment of short-term borrowings, net -                           -                           -                          

Payment of long-term borrowings 31,303                 44.9               9,429                   14.7               6,397                   11.7              

Repurchase of common stock / treasury stock -                           2,024                   3.1                 1,975                   3.6                

Payment of dividends to shareholders 5,272                   7.6                 3,753                   5.8                 1,353                   2.5                

Payment of other financing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Losses from discontinued operations -                           -                           -                          

Losses from effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net -                           -                           -                          

Total Outflows 69,657 $              100.0 64,305 $              100.0 54,769 $              100.0

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (36,882)                (20,123)                5,071                  

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)

Annual Summary Analysis Statement of Cash Flows

Summary percentages in italics  do not foot due to rounding differences

Results for the Years Ending September 30
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Current ratio 2.61 times 2.83 times

Quick ratio 1.56 times 2.14 times

Cash flow liquidity 0.60 times 1.44 times

Average collection period 55 days 70 days

Days inventory held 84 days 65 days

Days payable outstanding 43 days 55 days

Net trade cycle 96 days 80 days

Activity Ratios:

Accounts receivable turnover 6.65 times 5.29 times

Inventory turnover 4.35 times 5.69 times

Payables turnover 8.62 times 6.69 times

Fixed asset turnover 5.31 times 5.87 times

Total asset turnover 0.97 times 0.99 times

Leverage Ratios:

Debt ratio 26.44 % 29.81 %

Long-term debt to total capitalization 4.36 % 11.63 %

Debt to equity 0.36 times 0.42 times

Times interest earned 1.01 times 18.02 times 25.12 times

Cash interest coverage 12.05 times 24.12 times 30.77 times

Fixed charge coverage 1.00 times 6.74 times 15.24 times

Cash flow adequacy 0.32 times 0.85 times 1.57 times

Profitability Ratios:

Gross profit margin 27.99 % 33.45 % 38.31 %

Operating profit margin 0.54 % 10.17 % 18.71 %

Net profit margin 0.16 % 6.56 % 11.06 %

Cash flow margin 5.75 % 10.67 % 12.97 %

Return on assets (ROA)

   or  Return on investment (ROI)

0.15 % 6.50 %

Return on equity (ROE) 0.21 % 9.26 %

Cash return on assets 5.59 % 10.58 %

Market Ratios:

Earnings per share 0.03 $            1.36 $            2.56 $           

Price-to-earnings 337.67 0 18.34 0 10.04 0

Dividend payout  666.67 % 11.76 % 1.17 %

Dividend yield 1.97 % 0.64 % 0.12 %

NOTES:   If a ratio's numerator and/or denominator equals zero, no ratio is displayed.

            "N/M" indicates a calculated ratio is not meaningful for analysis

Action Performance Companies, Inc.     (ATN / NYSE)

Summary of Financial Statement Ratios

Results for the Years Ending September 30

2004 2003 2002



Short-term Liquidity
Action Performance Companies, Inc.'s (Action) current, quick and cash flow liquidity ratios are all decreasing.  The large decline in profit in 2004 resulted in an equally large decline in cash from operations (CFO) and the cash account balance declined over $36 million from 2003 to 2004.  Accounts receivable and prepaid royalties also declined causing total current assets to decline over 7%.  Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased, but not at the same rate as the current asset accounts.

The cash conversion cycle has increased 16 days even though the company improved the average collection period 15 days.  Inventory is being held 19 days longer in 2004 compared to 2003.  A portion of the inventory increase is attributed to the Funline acquisition and the fact that Funline needs higher amounts of inventory to service the mass-merchant retailers.  Days payable outstanding decreased 12 days meaning the firm is paying its suppliers quicker.  Action needs to find ways to reduce inventory levels in order to improve CFO and the cash conversion cycle.

Despite the decrease in sales and accounts receivable, the allowance for doubtful accounts has increased significantly.  Calculations to analyze these accounts are as follows:

	
	Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net receivables + Allowance
	percentage of

Receivables



	2004
	$9,367
$51,769+ $9,367


	15.3 %

	2003
	$3,634
$69,890+ $3,634
	4.9%


	
	Change from

2003 to 2004

	Sales
	(6.8%)

	Total Accounts Receivable
	 (16.8%)

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	157.8%


The Valuation and Qualifying Accounts schedule supports a lower percentage than the 15.3% that Action is expecting to be uncollectible.  Write-offs to date have not been as large as the amount charged to bad debt expense; however, Action does offer a possible explanation in its Form 10-K.  One-third of the wholesale distributors that Action sells to are having financial difficulties including paying on receivables due Action.  

Overall the short-term liquidity is adequate, but on a downward trend.  The inventory levels and declines in CFO should be monitored.

Operating Efficiency
The discussion in the prior section of the cash conversion cycle explained the reasons for the changes in the accounts receivable, inventory and accounts payable turnover ratios.  The fixed asset turnover ratio has decreased as a result of the decrease in sales in 2004 combined with increases in property, plant and equipment.  The decreases in both the fixed asset and inventory turnovers have resulted in an overall decrease to total asset turnover.  The downward trend of sales is of concern.

Capital Structure and Long-term Solvency

The capital structure of Action, on the surface, does not appear risky.  Besides the reduction in current liabilities discussed in the short-term liquidity section, the firm redeemed convertible notes in fiscal year 2004, causing long-term debt to drop significantly.  As a result, in future years less cash should be needed for repayments of debt.  Deferred income taxes have increased significantly so it is possible that more cash will be needed in the future for tax purposes.  There is, however, more risk in this company.  Items not included on the balance sheet, but still requiring outlays of cash, include royalty guarantees, personal service agreement, purchase obligations, and operating lease payments.  These items total $170,992 thousand.  Adding this amount to the total liabilities on the balance sheet results in future obligations representing 74% of total assets.

The coverage ratios, both accrual and cash based, have all declined due to the decrease in profits and CFO.  This is the key challenge that Action faces--determining how to reverse the downward trend in sales, profits and CFO.  A questionable strategy of Action is the choice to not only pay dividends, but to increase them every year despite the decreases in profits and CFO.  When considering both on-balance sheet and off-balance-sheet obligations, Action has a risky capital structure.

Profitability
The profitability of Action is poor.  All profit margins have decreased from 2002 to 2004.  The sales decreases are a result of a weak NASCAR collector market and lower orders from wholesale distributors that are experiencing their own financial hardships.  The NASCAR collection die-cast market suffered from production problems that negatively impacted sales.  The acquisition of Funline, however, increased sales to mass-merchant retailers in 2004, after this area suffered declines in 2003 as a result of Action's largest customers not ordering inventory in the second half of the year.  Trackwide sales are negatively impacted due to weather conditions and weak economies.  

Gross profit margin has decreased by over 10% from 2002 to 2004.  This could be the result of lower selling prices or higher cost of goods sold.  Given the production problems the firm has experienced, it is more probable that costs have increased and are responsible for the lower gross profit.

All other operating expenses have increased each year even though sales have declined.  This is a negative pattern and one which the company needs to address if they have any hope of improving the declining operating profit margin numbers.

Net profit margin has followed the same pattern as gross and operating profit margin.  A variety of items have both increased and decreased the bottom-line number.  Interest expense is decreasing as a result of the reduction of long-term debt.  Foreign exchange gains have benefited Action each year, although this could change in the future.  Action has had a positive impact from a joint venture, but the effective tax rate is a large 66% due to higher foreign taxes.  

Action must find a way to better control cost of goods sold and operating expenses.  In addition, the firm needs to reverse the downward trend of sales to reverse the downward trend of return on assets, return on equity and cash return on assets.  All returns are declining as profits and CFO decline in the firm.

Market Measures

Action's stock price has dropped from a high in 2002 of $50.27 per share to a low of $8.37 per share in 2004.  The price to earnings ratio indicates that the price has not dropped comparably to the decline in earnings per share.  It is possible then that the share price may continue to drop more.  As mentioned earlier, the dividend policy seems out of line given the dismal financial performance of the firm over the past three years.

	2.
	Strengths
	Weaknesses

	
	Average collection period has improved
	Inventories have increased

Operating efficiency is poor

	
	Cash flow from operations is still positive
	Declining sales, profits and CFO

	
	Long-term debt has been reduced
	Poor coverage ratios

	
	
	Risky capital structure due to many commitments


3.
The investment potential is poor.  Action's financial position is headed in the wrong direction.  The company has increasing inventories as sales decline. The industry is unique and depends on the level of interest people have in car racing.  Costs are not being controlled well and the firm has many off-balance-sheet commitments.  Because of the decreasing sales and profits, CFO has been negatively impacted.  The stock price has not fallen comparably to the decline in earnings per share, so it could continue to drop.  Investment is not recommended at this time.

The creditworthiness of the firm is also poor.  Although CFO is still a positive number, if sales, profits, and, therefore, CFO, continue to decline, the firm will have ever-decreasing amounts of cash.  While the debt on the balance sheet is reasonable, the firm has too many off-balance-sheet commitments and, therefore, has a risky debt structure.  It is not recommended that more loans be given to this company.

CASE 6.2

TASER INTERNATIONAL, INC.

1.  

[image: image16.emf]Company Name: 

Stock Ticker Symbol:  TASR

U.S. Stock Exchange:  NASDAQ Variable

12/31/2000

Year End Dates for Financial Statements:  12/31/2004 12/31/2003

Financial Reports Rounded to : 

Supplemental Ratio Requirements:

2004 2003 0

Rent expense (in ): 339,524 $                    162,743 $                   

Dividends per share:

End of year stock price (adjusted for splits ): 31.65 $                        6.86 $                         

CBS Marketwatch URL for stock prices:
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Check Figures:

2004 2003

Balance Sheet                         Current Assets:  60,034,928 $               26,374,965 $              

Total Assets: 109,452,578 $             31,444,690 $              

Current Liabilities: 8,933,939 $                 3,895,371 $                

Total Stockholders' Equity: 99,910,783 $               27,427,450 $              

0

Income Statement                        Gross Profit:  45,184,383 $               15,052,890 $              

Operating Profit: 30,480,468 $               7,580,699 $                

Net Profit: 18,881,742 $               4,453,690 $                

Cash Flow               Net Flows from Operations: 30,304,180 $               4,366,546 $                

Net Flows from Investing Activity: (46,790,988) $              (4,216,220) $               

Net Flows from Financing Activity: 15,365,641 $               12,151,063 $              

Taser International, Inc.

Please enter data on this sheet before entering financial statement information.

The 'Analysis ToolPak' add-in must be installed and active.
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ASSETS

    Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 14,757,159 $       15,878,326 $      

Short-term investments 17,201,477         

  Total cash and short-term investments 31,958,636          15,878,326         

Accounts receivable, net 8,460,112            5,404,333           

Inventories, net 6,840,051            3,125,974           

  Current deferred taxes 11,083,422          1,137,196           

Other current assets 1,692,707            829,136              

    Total current assets 60,034,928          26,374,965         

  Property, plant, and equipment 16,607,865          5,285,567           

  Less:  accumulated depreciation 1,851,353            1,338,686           

  Net property, plant, and equipment 14,756,512          3,946,881           

Long-term investments 18,071,815         

Goodwill, net

Other intangibles, net 1,279,116            1,122,844           

Other deferred taxes

Other assets 15,310,207         

      Total assets

109,452,578 $     31,444,690 $      

LIABILITIES

    Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,827,132 $         3,444,346 $        

Short-term debt 250,000              

Current portion of long-term debt 4,642                   15,223                

Accrued liabilities

Income taxes payable

Other current liabilities 102,165               185,802              

  Total current liabilities 8,933,939            3,895,371           

Long-term debt 3,655                  

Deferred income taxes payable 40,121                

Other deferred liabilities 607,856               78,093                

Other liabilities

    Total liabilities 9,541,795            4,017,240           

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock

Common stock, par value plus additional paid-in capital 75,851,419          22,249,828         

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 24,059,364          5,177,622           

Treasury stock

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Other stockholders' equity

    Total stockholders' equity 99,910,783          27,427,450         

      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

109,452,578 $     31,444,690 $      

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)

Annual Consolidated Balance Sheet

Amounts Rounded to : 

Results as of  
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ASSETS

    Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 13.5% 50.5%

Short-term investments 15.7% 0.0%

  Total cash and short-term investments 29.2% 50.5%

Accounts receivable, net 7.7% 17.2%

Inventories, net 6.2% 9.9%

  Current deferred taxes 10.1% 3.6%

Other current assets 1.5% 2.6%

    Total current assets 54.9% 83.9%

  Property, plant, and equipment 15.2% 16.8%

  Less:  accumulated depreciation 1.7% 4.3%

  Net property, plant, and equipment 13.5% 12.6%

Long-term investments 16.5% 0.0%

Goodwill, net 0.0% 0.0%

Other intangibles, net 1.2% 3.6%

Other deferred taxes 0.0% 0.0%

Other assets 14.0% 0.0%

      Total assets

100.0% 100.0%

LIABILITIES

    Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8.1% 11.0%

Short-term debt 0.0% 0.8%

Current portion of long-term debt 0.0% 0.0%

Accrued liabilities 0.0% 0.0%

Income taxes payable 0.0% 0.0%

Other current liabilities 0.1% 0.6%

  Total current liabilities 8.2% 12.4%

Long-term debt 0.0% 0.0%

Deferred income taxes payable 0.0% 0.1%

Other deferred liabilities 0.6% 0.2%

Other liabilities 0.0% 0.0%

    Total liabilities 8.7% 12.8%

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock 0.0% 0.0%

Common stock, par value plus additional paid-in capital 69.3% 70.8%

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 22.0% 16.5%

Treasury stock 0.0% 0.0%

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 0.0% 0.0%

Other stockholders' equity 0.0% 0.0%

    Total stockholders' equity 91.3% 87.2%

      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

100.0% 100.0%

Results as of  

Summary percentages in italics  will not foot due to rounding

Annual Common Size Balance Sheet

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)
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Net sales 67,639,879 $       24,455,506 $      

Less: Cost of goods sold 22,455,496          9,402,616           

    Gross profit 45,184,383          15,052,890          -                          

  Sales, general and administrative 13,880,322          6,973,721           

Research and development 823,593               498,470              

Restructuring, impairment, and amortization

Other operating expenses

  Total operating expenses 14,703,915          7,472,191            -                          

    Operating profit (loss) 30,480,468          7,580,699            -                          

Other income (expenses), net excluding interest expense 441,759               (204,101)             

  Earnings (loss) before interest and taxes 30,922,227          7,376,598            -                          

Interest expense 1,485                   9,307                  

  Earnings (loss) before taxes 30,920,742          7,367,291            -                          

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 12,039,000          2,913,601           

  Earnings (loss) after taxes 18,881,742          4,453,690            -                          

Extraordinary items, net

Discontinued operations, net

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net

Other after-tax income (loss), net

    Net profit (loss) 18,881,742 $       4,453,690 $         - $                       

Basic earnings per common share 0.33 $                  0.12 $                 

Results for the Years Ending 

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)

Annual Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts Rounded to :       (except per share amounts)
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Net sales 100.0% 100.0%

Less: Cost of goods sold 33.2% 38.4%

    Gross profit 66.8% 61.6%

Sales, general and administrative 20.5% 28.5%

Research and development  (R&D) 1.2% 2.0%

Restructuring, impairment, and amortization 0.0% 0.0%

Purchased in-process R&D 0.0% 0.0%

Other operating expenses 0.0% 0.0%

  Total operating expenses 21.7% 30.6%



    Operating profit (loss)

45.1% 31.0%

Other income (expenses), net excluding interest expense 0.7% -0.8%

  Earnings (loss) before interest and taxes 45.7% 30.2%



Interest expense 0.0% 0.0%

  Earnings (loss) before taxes 45.7% 30.1%

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 17.8% 11.9%

  Earnings (loss) after taxes 27.9% 18.2%

Extraordinary items, net 0.0% 0.0%

Discontinued operations, net 0.0% 0.0%

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net 0.0% 0.0%

Other after-tax income (loss), net 0.0% 0.0%

    Net profit (loss) 27.9% 18.2%



Effective tax rate 38.9% 39.5%

Results for the Years Ending 

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)

Annual Common Size Income Statement

Summary percentages in italics  will not foot due to rounding
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Income (loss) from continuing operations 18,881,742 $       4,453,690 $        

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:

  Restructuring charges

  Impairment charges

  Depreciation and amortization 551,793               393,568              

  (Gain) loss on sales of investments, acquisitions, and securities

  (Gain) loss on sales of property, plant, and equipment 15,873                

  Increase (decrease) in provision for deferred income taxes 727,892               (1,014,217)          

  Other non-cash items, net 12,398,326          4,454,143           

  Changes in assets and liabilities:

    (Increase) decrease in receivables (3,145,779)           (4,529,099)          

    (Increase) decrease in inventories (3,714,077)           (791,165)             

    (Increase) decrease in other current assets (863,571)              (640,435)             

    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 

       accrued liabilities, and income taxes payable

5,551,491            1,853,114           

    Increase (decrease) in deferred liabilities

    Other assets and liabilities, net (83,637)                171,074              

  Net cash provided by (used in ) operating activities 30,304,180          4,366,546            -                          

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment

(11,322,299)         (3,651,110)          

Sales of property, plant, and equipment

Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments

Sales of marketable securities and short-term investments

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Other investing activities, net (35,468,689)         (565,110)             

  Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (46,790,988)         (4,216,220)           -                          

Cash flows from financing activities:

Short-term borrowings, net

(250,000)              (635,000)             

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Payment of long-term borrowings (14,236)                (34,026)               

Proceeds from sales of common stock 15,629,877          12,820,089         

Repurchase of common stock / treasury stock

Dividends to shareholders

Other financing activities, net

  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 15,365,641          12,151,063          -                          

Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents for period (1,121,167)           12,301,389          -                          

Cash and equivalents, beginning of period 15,878,326          3,576,937           

Cash and equivalents, end of period

14,757,159 $       15,878,326 $       - $                       

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:

  Interest 1,364 9,922                  

  Income taxes (refunded) -264,026 202,410              

Results for the Years Ending 

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)

Annual Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts Rounded to : 
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Inflows $ $ $

Proceeds from operating activities 30,304,180          66.0               4,366,546            25.4               -                          

Sales of property, plant, and equipment -                           -                           -                          

Sales of marketable securities and short-term investments -                           -                           -                          

Divestiture of acquisitions, net of cash acquired -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from other investing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from short-term borrowings, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from long-term borrowings -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from sales of common stock 15,629,877          34.0               12,820,089          74.6               -                          

Proceeds from other financing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Proceeds from discontinued operations -                           -                           -                          

Gains from effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net -                           -                           -                          

Total Inflows 45,934,057 $       100.0 17,186,635 $       100.0 - $                        0.0

Outflows $ $ $

Losses from operating activities -                           -                           -                          

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment 11,322,299          24.1               3,651,110            74.7               -                          

Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments -                           -                           -                          

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired -                           -                           -                          

Losses from other investing activities, net 35,468,689         

75.4              

565,110              

11.6              

-                          

Payment of short-term borrowings, net 250,000               0.5                 635,000               13.0               -                          

Payment of long-term borrowings 14,236                 -                   34,026                 0.7                 -                          

Repurchase of common stock / treasury stock -                           -                           -                          

Payment of dividends to shareholders -                           -                           -                          

Payment of other financing activities, net -                           -                           -                          

Losses from discontinued operations -                           -                           -                          

Losses from effect of exchange rate changes on cash, net -                           -                           -                          

Total Outflows 47,055,224 $       100.0 4,885,246 $         100.0 - $                        0.0

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,121,167)           12,301,389          -                          

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)

Annual Summary Analysis Statement of Cash Flows

Summary percentages in italics  do not foot due to rounding differences

Results for the Years Ending 
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Current ratio 6.72 times 6.77 times

Quick ratio 5.95 times 5.97 times

Cash flow liquidity 6.97 times 5.20 times

Average collection period 46 days 81 days

Days inventory held 112 days 122 days

Days payable outstanding 144 days 134 days

Net trade cycle 14 days 69 days

Activity Ratios:

Accounts receivable turnover 8.00 times 4.53 times

Inventory turnover 3.28 times 3.01 times

Payables turnover 2.54 times 2.73 times

Fixed asset turnover 4.58 times 6.20 times

Total asset turnover 0.62 times 0.78 times

Leverage Ratios:

Debt ratio 8.72 % 12.78 %

Long-term debt to total capitalization 0.00 0 0.01 %

Debt to equity 0.10 times 0.15 times

Times interest earned 20525.57 times 814.52 times 0.00 0

Cash interest coverage 22024.57 times 461.49 times 0.00 0

Fixed charge coverage 90.38 times 45.01 times 0.00 0

Cash flow adequacy 2.67 times 1.18 times 0.00 0

Profitability Ratios:

Gross profit margin 66.80 % 61.55 % 0.00 0

Operating profit margin 45.06 % 31.00 % 0.00 0

Net profit margin 27.92 % 18.21 % 0.00 0

Cash flow margin 44.80 % 17.86 % 0.00 0

Return on assets (ROA)

   or  Return on investment (ROI)

17.25 % 14.16 %

Return on equity (ROE) 18.90 % 16.24 %

Cash return on assets 27.69 % 13.89 %

Market Ratios:

Earnings per share 0.33 $            0.12 $            - $             

Price-to-earnings 95.91 0 57.17 0 0.00 0

Dividend payout  0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

Dividend yield 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0

NOTES:   If a ratio's numerator and/or denominator equals zero, no ratio is displayed.

            "N/M" indicates a calculated ratio is not meaningful for analysis

Taser International, Inc.     (TASR / NASDAQ)

Summary of Financial Statement Ratios

Results for the Years Ending 

Dec 31, 2004 Dec 31, 2003 Jan 0, 1900



Short-term Liquidity

Taser International, Inc. (Taser) has excellent short-term liquidity.  The amounts on the common size balance sheet are skewed as a result of the large increase in assets from 2003 to 2004.  For example, cash and short-term investments have more than doubled, but in percentage terms the amount dropped from 50.5% to 29.2%.  The increase in cash and short-term investments is a result of both cash from operations (CFO) and proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants.  Except for the Income Tax Receivable account, all other current asset accounts have increased in dollars.  The current asset deferred income taxes has increased a significant amount.  Current liabilities also increased in dollar amounts, but declined in percentage terms; however, current liabilities rose slightly faster compared to current assets.  This resulted in a small decline in the current and quick ratios, but these two ratios are quite high.  The cash flow liquidity ratio is also very high and it has increased as a result of the increase in CFO.

The average collection period has decreased by 35 days from 2003 to 2004.  This is an excellent improvement especially when considering that sales increased 177%.  Accounts receivable in total increased only 58% and the allowance for doubtful accounts increased 300%.  One concern is that two distributors account for 37% of the accounts receivable balance.  The default by one of these distributors could negatively impact the company.  

Days inventory held has decreased by 10 days, but is still relatively high at 112 days.  This could be explained by the large demand for the company's products as evidenced by the growth rate of sales. 

Days payable outstanding has increased from 134 to 144 days.  While this helps improve the cash conversion cycle, taking this long to pay suppliers may not always be a good thing.  Taser needs to make sure they are paying its bills on time so as not to lose any critical suppliers.  The combination of improving the turnover of accounts receivable and inventory and taking longer to pay suppliers has resulted in a good cash conversion cycle of 14 days.

Operating Efficiency
The operating efficiency of accounts receivable, inventory and accounts payable was discussed in the short-term liquidity section.  Fixed asset turnover and total asset turnover have declined as a result of large increases in long-term assets at a faster rate than the increase in sales.  Property, plant and equipment is higher as a result of the construction of a new building and purchase of furniture and computer equipment.  While this has caused the drop in fixed asset turnover, over time this ratio should improve if Taser continues to increase sales.  Total asset turnover has been impacted by fixed asset turnover and also the large increases in deferred income taxes and short-term and long-term investments.

Capital Structure and Long-term Solvency
Taser does not have a risky capital structure.  The firm has paid off all long-term debt and it appears that the new building will replace lease obligations.  The debt ratio is below 9% and is comprised mainly of accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and deferred revenue--ordinary operating accounts.  Coverage ratios are excellent and cash flow adequacy is above one in both 2003 and 2004.

Profitability

As previously mentioned, Taser had a phenomenal sales increase in 2004 of 177%.  Common size income statement amounts are skewed as a result.  Gross profit margin has increased by 5.2%.  This is due to increased selling prices, lower costs or a large amount of fixed costs.  Without the management discussion and analysis, it is difficult to guess which item above is the actual reason.

Operating expenses as a percentage of sales have also decreased, resulting in a 14.1% increase in operating profit.  There are most likely fixed costs in the operating expenses that have not increased in proportion to sales.  It is good that Taser has chosen to increase advertising, training and education, and research and development expenses to further promote its products.

Net profit margins are also increasing, but not as much as operating profit due to the provision for income taxes.  Since the firm was profitable, they did incur tax expense, but it is at expected tax rates of 38.9% and 39.5% in 2004 and 2003, respectively.  Beneficial to the net profit margin has been the increase in interest income, a result of the large increases in short-term and long-term investments, combined with the decrease in interest expense, as the firm has reduced debt.  

Cash flow margin has increased almost 27% as a result of the increase in CFO.  All of the above-mentioned increases to profit and cash have resulted in healthy return amounts relative to assets and equity.  Despite the excellent cash and profitability picture, there are concerns that the investor and creditor would have.  The firm has come under increasing scrutiny related to the safety of its products.  Many lawsuits have been filed, and if Taser is unable to successfully defend itself, demand for its products could drop as fast as it has risen.  In this case CFO and profits could be negatively impacted.  Investors and creditors may also be concerned about the errors in the accounting area that resulted in the restatement and the error on the statement of cash flows which indicates poor quality of financial reporting.  

Market Measures

In both 2003 and 2004, the market has placed a high value on the company.  This is not unexpected given the excellent overall financial position of the firm.

2.
Reasons for investment in Taser common stock

· Excellent short-term and long-term liquidity

· Capital structure is not risky

· CFO and profits are positive and increasing

Reasons against investment in Taser common stock

· Stock price is already high relative to earnings per share

· Risk of having high inventory levels

· Risk from lawsuits

· Restatement and accounting errors

3.
Reasons for loaning Taser additional funds

· No current long-term debt

· Debt ratio is below 9%

· Short-term and long-term liquidity are excellent

· CFO and profits are positive and increasing

Reasons against loaning Taser additional funds

· Days payable outstanding is high

· Unsuccessful defense of lawsuits could negatively impact CFO

· Restatement and accounting errors

Appendix 6A
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	Table 6A-1   Contribution by Segment to Revenue (Percentages)

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2002
	

	Digital & Film Imaging Systems
	67.96
	
	71.64
	
	71.74
	

	Health
	19.87
	
	18.83
	
	18.12
	

	Commercial Imaging
	5.94
	
	6.13
	
	6.30
	

	Graphic Communications
	5.36
	
	2.68
	
	3.20
	

	All Other (not a reportable segment)
	.87
	
	.72
	
	.64
	

	
	Total Revenues
	100.00
	
	100.00
	
	100.00
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Table 6A-2   Contribution by Segment to Operating Profit (Loss)

(Percentages)

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2002
	

	Digital & Film Imaging Systems
	70.73
	
	45.56
	
	58.68
	

	Health
	53.05
	
	52.14
	
	32.80
	

	Commercial Imaging
	15.49
	
	11.94
	
	8.98
	

	Graphic Communications
	(17.07
	)
	(1.21
	)
	1.60
	

	All Other (not a reportable segment)
	(22.20
	)
	(8.43
	)
	(2.06
	)

	
	Total Operating Profit (Loss)
	100.00
	
	100.00
	
	100.00
	

	
	
	
	


	Table 6A-3   Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes/Net Sales (Percentages)

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2002
	

	Digital & Film Imaging Systems
	6.31
	
	4.50
	
	8.56
	

	Health
	16.20
	
	19.58
	
	18.95
	

	Commercial Imaging
	15.82
	
	13.78
	
	14.92
	

	Graphic Communications
	(19.34
	)
	(3.18
	)
	5.22
	

	All Other (not a reportable segment)
	(154.24
	)
	(82.80
	)
	(33.75
	)

	
	
	
	


	Table 6A-4   Capital Expenditures by Segment (Percentages)

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2002
	

	Digital & Film Imaging Systems
	66.74
	
	75.86
	
	71.45
	

	Health
	16.30
	
	16.30
	
	14.19
	

	Commercial Imaging
	4.57
	
	4.83
	
	8.06
	

	Graphic Communications
	6.30
	
	1.81
	
	5.60
	

	All Other (not a reportable segment)
	6.09
	
	1.20
	
	.70
	

	
	Total Capital Expenditures
	100.00
	
	100.00
	
	100.00
	

	
	
	
	


	Table 6A-5   Return on Investment by Segment (Percentages)

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2002
	

	Digital & Film Imaging Systems
	6.98
	
	4.68
	
	8.76
	

	Health
	16.43
	
	18.32
	
	21.43
	

	Commercial Imaging
	21.45
	
	16.62
	
	17.23
	

	Graphic Communications
	(11.70
	)
	(1.84
	)
	3.47
	

	All Other (not a reportable segment)
	(189.58
	)
	(1100.0
	)
	(41.54
	)

	
	
	
	

	Table 6A-6  Ranking of Segments in 2004 (Percentages)

	
	% of Total Segment Assets
	Contribution to Operating Profit
	
	Operating Profit Margin
	
	Return on Invest-ment
	

	Digital & Film Imaging
	64.71
	70.73
	
	6.31
	
	6.98
	

	Health
	20.61
	53.05
	
	16.20
	
	16.43
	

	Graphic Communications
	9.32
	(17.07
	)
	(19.34
	)
	(11.70
	)

	Commercial Imaging
	4.61
	15.49
	
	15.82
	
	21.45
	

	All Other (not a reportable segment)
	.75
	(22.20
	)
	(154.24
	)
	(189.58
	)


Analysis of Segments
Referring first to the geographic information provided, the majority of Kodak's sales are outside the United States.  Sales are increasing slightly overseas, relative to U.S. sales.

The Digital & Film Imaging Systems (D&FIS) and Health segments are the two largest revenue producers for Kodak.  D&FIS has contributed less to revenue each year, while Health has contributed more.  The Commercial Imaging contribution to revenue has declined over the three-year period.  Graphic Communications has generated more revenue in the past three years.  

As one would expect, in 2004 the D&FIS and Health segments contributed the most to operating profit.  Commercial Imaging also contributed positively to operating profit, but Graphics Communications generated operating losses.  Health and Commercial Imaging have contributed more to operating profit in both 2004 and 2003, while D&FIS contributed less in 2003 compared to 2002 and 2004.  No clear pattern exists for the operating profit margins in three of the four segments.  Health has the highest operating profit margin with Commercial Imaging close behind.  D&FIS generates a positive operating profit margin while Graphic Communications does not.  Operating profit margins have declined in 2003 and increased in 2004 in D&FIS and Commercial Imaging.  Health's operating profit margin increased in 2003 and declined in 2004.  Graphic Communications has a decreasing operating profit margin from 2002 to 2004.

The trends in the capital expenditures are expected.  Over 50% of capital expenditures each year are used in the D&FIS segment, but in 2004, the amount dropped compared to prior years.  This is also expected since Kodak's film area is becoming obsolete.  Health receives the second largest amount of funding for capital expenditures.  Graphic Communications is receiving more funding in 2004 compared to 2003, while less is spent each year in the Commercial Imaging segment.

Interestingly the return on investment is the best and increasing for Commercial Imaging.  Health has a good return on investment but it is decreasing each year as the segment acquires more assets.  D&FIS's return on investment has declined in 2003 and increased in 2004.  Graphic Communications is generating negative return on investment in 2004 and 2003.  Based on the management's discussion and analysis operating expenses were high in 2004 as a result of significant acquisition activity in this area.  Kodak now needs to focus on achieving profitability in this segment.  The Health segment's return on investment should be monitored as well in order to stop the downward trend.  Finally, the D&FIS segment is in a state of transition from film to digital products and is not doing as well as it did traditionally.  Kodak will need to put forth the appropriate funding for R&D and advertising, while maintaining cost control to move forward successfully in this segment.
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